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CRESSKILL PUBLIC SCHOOLS

One Lincoln Drive
Cresskill, NJ 07626
Phone: (201) 227-7791 Ext1206, Fax :( 201) 567-7976

November 18, 2011

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Cresskill School District

County of Bergen, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Cresskill School District (“The District”) for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board of Education (“The Board”). To the best of
our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the District. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview
and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).
This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. Cresskill Public
School’s MD&A can be found immediately following the “Independent Auditors’” Report™.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical and single audit.
The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart and a list of principal officials.
The financial section includes the independent auditors’ report, management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) and the
basic financial statements including the district-wide financial statements presented in conformity with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34. The basic financial statements also include individual fund financial
statements, notes to the financial statements and required supplemental information (RSI). The statistical section includes
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis.

The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act, as
amended, and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-
Profit Organizations”, and the State Treasury Circular OMB 04-04. Information related to this single audit, including the
auditors’ report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: Cresskill School District is an independent reporting entity within the
criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). All funds of the District are included in this
report. The Cresskill Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity.



1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: (Coniinued)

The District provides a full range of educational services apptopriate to grade levels Pre-K through 12. These include
advanced placement, regular and vocational as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The District completed
the 2010-2011 fiscal year with an enrollment of 1,745 students, which is 3 students greater than the previous yeat's
enroliment.

The following details the changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last ten years,

Fiscal Student Percent

Year Enrollment Change
2010-11 1,745 17
2009-10 1,742 2.96
2008-09 1,692 35
2007-08 1,686 2.06
2006-07 1,652 2.54
2005-06 1,611 2.35
2004-05 1,574 2.01
2003-04 1,534 5.65
2002-03 1,452 3.13
2001-02 1,408 543

2, ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: The Borough of Cresskill continues to grow at a steady rate
despite the economic climate in the region. The state mandates and poteniial legisiation on property tax may affect
enrollment in the future.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: The main focus of the 2010-2011 school year is to continue to upgrade technology district
wide. This includes but not limited to desktops, laptop carts and smart boards and the broadcast studio. Staff
development which includes Global Learning, Differentiation and Genesis is also an integral part of the technology
initiative. In regard to facilities, renovations and repairs are planned for the tennis courts, high school soccer field and
the retaining wall at Edward H. Bryan School. We are planning on purchasing band wniforms and equipment. We are
also planning to install solar panels on the middle school/high school roof through a power purchase agreement.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for establishing and
maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal
control structure is in place {0 ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This
internal control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District’s management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control

structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the
District has complied with applicable Iaws and regulations.

ii



5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls.
The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated
budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the General, Special
Revenue and Debt Service Funds. Project length budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the
Capital Projects Fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item basis. Open
encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year.
Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2011,

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The
accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in "Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements", Note 1,

7. FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR -END: As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules
included in the financial section of this report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial
management.

8. CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in
"Notes to the Basic Financial Statements". The District has adopted a cash management plan which requires it to deposit
public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection
Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed
banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories
located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability,
automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity bonds.

10. OTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Lerch, Vinci & Higgins, LLP was selected by the
Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the
requirements of the Single Audit Act, as amended, and the related OMB Circular A-133 and State Treasury Circular OMB
04-04. The auditors” report on the basic financial statements is included in the financial section of this report. The auditors’
reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report.

11. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Cresskill School Board
for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby
contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report
could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Antoinette Kelly, CPA Dr. Loretta Bellina
Business Administrator/Board Secretary Superintendent
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Trustees
Cresskill Board of Education
Cresskiil, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cresskill Board of Education as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Board of Education’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Education’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and
Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are frec of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Cresskill Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Cresskill Board of Education as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 18, 2011 on our
consideration of the Cresskill Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Cresskill Board of Education’s basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, financial schedules and statistical section are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedules of
expenditures of state financial assistance are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations™
and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and
State Aid”, and are also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules of expenditures of state financial assistance are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, financial schedules and
statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Vingi & Yggens- (L
LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Pablic School Accountants

Donna L. Japhet

Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS002314

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
November 18, 2011
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS




CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2011

This section of Cresskill Board of Education’s annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis
of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2011. Please read it in
conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District’s financial statements,
which immediately follows this section.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standard Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 —
Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key financial highlights for the 2010-2011 fiscal year include the following:

The assets of the Cresskill Board of Education exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year
by $12,302,126.

The District’s total net assets increased $616,779,

Overall District revenues were $28,204,208. General revenues accounted for $23,825,644 or 84%
of all revenues. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and grants and
contributions accounted for $4,378,564 or 16% of total revenues.

Overall District expenses were $27,587,429. Governmental activities expenses accounted for
$27,215,867 or 99% and business-type activities expenses accounted for $371,562 or 1%.

The school district had $27,215,867 in expenses for governmental activities; only $4,012,881 of
these expenses were offset by program specific charges, grants or contributions. General revenues
(predominantly property taxes) of $23,825,096 were adequate to provide for these programs.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported a combined
ending fund balance of $820,666. Of this amount, $226,725 (28%) is reserved for future budgets
and $225,000 (27%) is reserved for capital projects.

The General Fund unassigned budgetary fund balance at the close of the current fiscal year was
$676,356 which represented a decrease of $6,546 from the previous year.




CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2011

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of the annual report consists of four parts — Independent Auditor’s Report, required
supplementary information which includes the management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the
basic financial statements, and supplemental information. The basic financial statements include two kinds
of statements that present different views of the District:

o The first two statements are district wide financial statements that provide both short-term
and long-term information about the District’s overall financial status.

s The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
District, reporting the District’s operations in more detail than the district-wide statements.

o The governmental funds statements tell how basic services were financed in the short term as
well as what remains for future spending.

e Proprietary funds statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the
the activities the district operated like businesses.

e Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the
District acts solely as a frustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom the resources belong,

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and
provide more detailed data. The following illustration shows how the various parts of this Annual Report
are arranged and related to one another.

Management Basic
Discussion Financial
And Statements
Analysis
District-wide Fund Notes
Financial Financial To the
Statements Statements Financial
Statements
Summary < > Detail




CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2011

The Table below summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the portion
of the District’s activities they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this
overview section of management’s discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each of

the statements.

MAJOR FEATURES OF THE DISTRICT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

District-Wide

Fund Financial Statements

Statements

Statement of activities

Statement of Revenue,
expenditures and changes in
fund balances

IStatement of revenue,
expenses, and changes in
fund net assets,
Statement of cash flows

Statements Governmental Funds Proprigtary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Scope Entire district{except The activities of the district that Activities the district [nstances in which the
fiduciary funds) are not proprietary or fiduciary, operates similar to district administers
such as instruction, building private businesses: resources on behaif of
maintenance, transportation, and [Enterprise Funds someone else, such as
tadministeation. unemployment,
scholarships, student
activities, and Payroll
Heduction.
Required finaneial Statements of net assets Balance Sheet Statement of Not Assets  [Statements of

[Fiduciary net assets,
Statement of changes
in fiduciary net assets

IAccounting Basis and

Measurement focus

iAccrual accounting and

keconomic resources focus

Modified accrual accouniing
and current financial focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

lAccrual accounting
land economic resources

Focus

[Type of asset/liability
tnformation

IATl assets and liabilities,
both financial and capitai,
short-term and long-term

Generally assets expected to be
used up and liabilities that come
due during the year or soon there
fter; no capital assets or long-term
liabilities included

IATL assets and liabilitics,
both financial and capitai,
and short-term and long-
term

IAHE assets and Habilities,
both short-term and fong
funds do not currently
contain capital assets,
jalthough they can

[Type of inflow/outflow
[nformation

All revenues and expenses
during vear, regardless of
when cash is received or
paid

Revenues for which cash is recetved
during or soon after the end of the
lyear; expenditures when goods or
services have been received and the

related liability is due and payable.

ALl revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless
of when cash is received
jor paid.

ATl additions and
dedications during the
vear, regardless of when
cash is received or paid,

District-wide Statements

The district-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets includes a// of the District’s
assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of
activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two district-wide statements report the District’s et assefs and how they have changed. Net assets —
the difference between the District’s assets and liabilities — is one way to measure the District’s financial

health or position




CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2011

¢ To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial factors
such as changes in the District’s property tax base and the condition of school buildings and
other facilities,

In the district-wide financial statements the District’s activities are shown in two categories:

s Governmental activities — Most of the District’s basic services are included here, such as regular
and special education, transportation, administration and plant operation and maintenance.
Property taxes and state aid finance most of these activities.

& Business type activities — These funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in @ manner similar to private business enterprise. The District’s food service program
and the Community Step to Independence (“CSI™) program are included under this category.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statemends provide more detailed information about the District’s funds — focusing on its
most significant or “major” funds - not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District
uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs:

» Some funds are required by State law and bond covenants.

» The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or
to show that it is properly using certain revenues (federal and state grants).

The District has three kinds of funds:

o Governmental funds — Most of the District’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which
generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and
out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental
funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps to determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs. Because
this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we
provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statements that explains the
relationship (or differences) between them.

e Proprietary funds — Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide statements,

e Enterprise Funds — This fund is established to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to privaie business enterprises. The stated intent is that costs of
providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or recovered
primarily through user charges. The District had two enterprise funds those being the food service
(cafeteria) program and the Community Step to Independence (“CSI”) Program. During the
2010/201 1 school year, the District discontinued the CSI Fund.

o Fiduciary funds — The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, The District is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and
by those to whom the assets belong, All of the District’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate
statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. We exclude these
activities from the district-wide financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance
its operations.



CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
district-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found
following the basic financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the District’s budget process. The District adopts an
annual expenditure budget for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. A budgetary
comparison stafement has been provided for the general and special revenue funds as required
supplementary information. The required supplementary information can be found following the notes to
the basic financial statements,

Combining statements and schedules are presented immediately following the major budgetary
comparisons,

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net Assets, The District’s combined net assets were $12,302,126 and $11,685,347 on June 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively, as follows:
Net Assets
As of June 30, 2011 and 2010

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 200 2011 2010 2011 2010
Current and Other Assets $ 1303522 § 1,385357 § 68,317 3 87976 $ 1,371,839 § 1,473,333
Capital Assets 32,241,975 32,643,165 19,800 8,943 32,252,775 32,652,168
Total Assets 33,545,497 34,028,522 79,117 96,919 33,624,614 34,125,441
Long-Term Liabiiities 20,565,947 21,408,955 20,565,947 21,408,955
Other Liabilities 754,073 1,016,200 2,468 14,939 756,541 1,031,139
Total Liabilities 21,320,020 22,425,155 2,468 14,939 21,322,488 22,440,004
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of
Total Capital Assets, Net 2,570,296 12,109,928 10,800 8,943 12,581,096 12,118,871
Restricted 226,725 I 226,725 1
Unrestricted (571,544) (506,562) 65,849 73,637 (505,695) (433,525)
Total Net Assets $ 12225477 $ 11,603,367 § 76,649 § §1,980 $ 12,302,126 $ 11,685,347

The District’s total net assets of $12,302,126 at June 30, 2011 represents a $616,779, or 5% increase from
the prior year. By far the largest portion of the District’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land and improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment); less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding, The District uses these capital assets to
provide services to its students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although
the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.



Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues
Property Taxes

State Aid
Total Capital Asscts, Net

Total Revenues

Expenses
Instruction
Regular
Special Education
Other Instruction
School Sponsored Activities and Athletics
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services
General Administrative Services
School Administrative Services .
Central Services/ Admin Info. Tech
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Interest on Debt

Food Services
CSI Program - Non Major

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Change in Net Assets
For The Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 011 2010
$ 1,075,871 § 59,877 § 340,000 $ 577,334 § 1415871 § 1,169,211
2,937,010 4,118917 25,683 28,072 2,962,693 4,146,989
92,129 - 92,129
23,531,479 22,663,737 23,531,479 22,663,737
17.814 18,901 17,814 18,901
275,803 149,315 548 585 276,351 149,900
27,837,977 27,634,876 366,231 605,991 28,204,208 28,240,867
10,691,713 10,701,308 10,691,713 10,701,308
4,231,848 3,788,211 4,231,848 3,788,211
790,651 814,517 790,651 814,517
661,365 675,280 661,363 675,280
3,900,765 3,904,218 3,900,765 3,904,218
645,140 522,683 645,140 522,683
1,499,294 1,424,952 1,499,294 1,424,952
556,790 559,109 556,790 559,109
2,936,208 3,144,414 2,936,208 3,144,414
431,983 544,104 431,983 544,104
870,110 905,303 870,110 905,303
- 348,468 392,350 348,468 392,350
- - 23,094 211,406 23,094 -

27,215,867 26,984,099 371,562 603,756 27,587,429 27,587,855
622,110 650,777 (5,331) 2,235 616,779 653,012
11,603,367 10,952,590 81,980 79,745 11,685,347 11,032,335
$ 12,225477 § 11,603,367 $ 76,649 § 81,980 § 12,302,126 §$ 11,685,347




CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION -

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Governmental Activities. The District’s total governmental activities’ revenues, which includes State and
Federal grants, were $27,837,977 for the year ended June 30, 2011. Property taxes of $23,531,479
represented 85% of revenues. Another significant portion of revenues came from State aid; total State,
Federal and local aid was $2,954,824 represented 10% of revenues. In addition, charges for services
(tuition) of $§1,075,871 comprise 4% of the total revenues. The remaining revenues are from miscellaneous
income which includes items such as interest, prior year refunds and other miscellancous items and
contributions.

The total cost of all governmental activities programs and services was $27,215,867. The District’s
expenses are predominantly related to educating and caring for students. Instruction totaled $16,375,577
(60%) of total expenses. Support services represent $9,970,180 (37%) of total expenses and interest on
debt represents $870,110 (3%) of total expenses.

Total governmental activities revenues exceeded expenses, increasing net assets $622,110 from the
previous year.
Revenues by Sources — Governmental Activities
For Fiscal Year 2011

State and Charges for T
Federal Aid and Services 19,
Grants 4% °
10%

School Tax Levy
85%

Expenses by Use — Governmental Activities

For Fiscal Year 2011
School, General &
Central
Administration Other
10% 5%
Oper. Plant &
Maint.

1%
Instru nction Student and
60% Instruction

Services
14%



CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Net Cost of Governmental Activities, The District’s total cost of services was $27,215,867.
After applying program revenues, derived from operating grants and contributions of $2,937,010
and charges for services of $1,075,871, the net cost of services of the District is $23,202,986.

Total and Net Cost of Governmental Activities
For The Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Instruction
Regular
Special Education
Other Instruction
School Sponsored Activities and Athletics

Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services

General Administrative Services
Total Capital Assets, Net

Central Services

Plant Operations and Maintenance

Pupil Transportation
Interest on Debt

Total

Total Cost of Services

2011

2010

$ 10,691,713 $ 10,701,308

4231,848
790,651
661,365

3,900,765
645,140
1,499,294
556,790
2,936,208

431,983
870,110

3,788,211
814,517
675,280

3,904,218
522,683
1,424,952
559,109
3,144,414
544,104
905,303

Net Cost
of Services
2011 2010
9,028,275 $ 9,050,486
2,417,128 1,302,382
698,982 721,264
605,688 616,235
3,668,730 3,724,910
645,140 522,683
1,379,841 1,316,183
556,790 559,109
2,925,598 3,023,332
425246 461,478
851,568 883,114

$ 27,215,867 § 26,984,099 $23,202,986 $22,181,176

Business-Type Activities — The District’s total business-type activities revenues were $366,231
for the year ended June 30, 2011. Charges for services accounted for 93% of total revenues.
Operating grants and contributions accounted for 7% of total revenue for the year.

Total cost of all business-type activities programs and services was $371,562. The District’s
expenses are related to Food Service (Cafeteria) operations and the CSI Program.

Total business-type activitics expenses exceeded revenues, decreasing net assets by $5,331.
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2011

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financial
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may setve as a useful measure of the District’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year,

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the
District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $820.666, an
increase of $173,212 from last year’s fund balance. This increase was primarily due to an increase in
General Fund fund balance as a result of tuition and other services revenues received in excess of what was
originally anticipated and careful budget monitoring and control of spending.

Revenues for the District’s governmental funds were $27,837,977, while total expenses were $27,664,765
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
GENERAL FUND

The General fund includes the primary operations of the District in providing educational services to
students from kindergarten through Grade 12 including transportation and capital outlay activities.

The following schedule presents a comparison of General Fund Revenues.

Amount of Percent
Year Ended Increase Increase
2011 2010 {Decrease) (Decrease)
Local Sources
Property Taxes $ 21,892,509 $ 21,052,000 $ 840,509 4%
Tuition 1,075,871 591,877 483,994 82%
Other 275,790 149,028 126,762 85%
State Sources 2,223,659 3,271,250 (1,047,591) -32%

Total General Fund Revenues $ 25467829 § 25,064,155 § 403,674 2%

Local property taxes increased by $840,509 or 4% over the previous year. State aid revenue decreased
$1,047,591 or 32% due to a decrease in state aid allocation. Tuition revenues increased $483,994 or 82%,
as the District experienced a growth in students being received from other LEAs and individuals, Other
local sources of revenues increased $126,762 or 85% which was the result of additional revenues from
other LEAS for related services and rental revenues over the previous year,

11




CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2011

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS (Continued)
GENERAL FUND (Continued)

The following schedule presents a comparison of General Fund expenditures.

Amount of Percent
Year Ended Increase Increase
011 010 (Decrease) {Decrease)
Instruction $ 15 778,487 & 15248735 % 529,752 3.47%
Support Services 9,061,556 9,174,219 (112,663 -1.23%
Debt Service 69,951 151,140 (81,139 -533.72%
Capital Outlay 384,636 75,599 309,037 408.78%
Total Expenditures § 25294630 $ 24,649,693 § 644,937 2.62%

Total General Fund expenditures increased $644,937 or 12% from the previous year. The majority of this
increase can be attributed to an increase in capital outlay most notably for renovations to auditorium and
tennis courts.

In 2010-2611 General Fund revenues and other financing sources exceeded expenditures and other
financing uses by $173,199. Therefore, total fund balance increased to $820,667 at June 30, 2011, After
deducting statutory reserves and designations, the unassigned fund balance increased from $236,457 at
June 30, 2010 to $316,743 at June 30, 201 1.

CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION
At the end of fiscal years 2011 and 2010, the District had $41,085,961 and $40,604,599 invested in land,

buildings, furniture, equipment and vehicles for the governmental activities and $136,521 and $133,652 for
business-type activities. The following compares the June 30, 2011 and 2010 balances.

12




CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2011

CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

Capital Assets
at June 30, 2011 and 2010

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 0il 010
Land $ 48,630 § 48,630 by 48,630 ¢ 48,630
Improvements Other Than Buildings 688,743 524,148 688,743 524,148
Buildings and Building Improvements 39,087,757 38,970,598 39,087,757 38,970,395
Machinery and Equipment 1,260,831 1,061,226 § 136,521 § 133,652 1,397,352 1,194,878

41,085,961 40,604,599 136,521 133,652 41,222 482 40,738,251

Less Accumulated Depreciation (8,843,986) (7,961,434) (125,721) {124,709y (8,969,707) (8,086,143)
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 32241975 § 32,643,165 § 10,800 § 8943 § 32252775 § 32,652,108

Additional information on the District’s capital assets are presented in the “Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements” of this report.

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

At June 30, 2011 the District had $20,573,142 of outstanding debt. Of this amount, $817,919 is for
compensated absences; $19,675,000 is for bonds payable and $80,223 is for capital leases/lease purchase
agreements payable. This is in comparison to long-term liabilities at June 30, 2010 consisting of
compensated absences of $792,840, bonds payable of $20,480,000 and capital leases of $144,338,

Outstanding Long-Term Debt
at June 30. 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Bonds Payable $ 19,675,000 § 20,480,000
Capital Leases/Lease Purchase
Agreements Payable 80,223 144,338
Compensated Absences 817,919 792,840

$ 20,573,142 § 21,417,178

Additional information on the District’s long-term liabilities is presented in the “Notes to the Basic

Financial Statements” of this report,
P
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2011

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. These budget
amendments fall info two categories:

s Implementing budgets for specially funded projects, which include both federal and state
grants and reinstating prior year purchase orders being carried over as encumbrances.

e Increases in appropriations for significant unbudgeted costs.

General Fund budgetary revenues and other financing sources exceeded budgetary expenditures and other
financing uses increasing budgetary fund balance $86,367 from the previous year. After deducting
statutory reserves and designations, the unassigned budgetary fund balances decreased $6,546 from
$682,902 at June 30, 2010 to $676,356 at June 30, 2011.

FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S FUTURE

While many factors influence the district’s future, the availability of funding for special education needs
and the economy will have the most impact on educational and fiscal decisions in the future.

Currently, the District is in good financial condition. Everyone associated with the Cresskill School
District is grateful for the community support of the schools. A major concern is continued enrollment
growth and the need to address the District’s facility needs in each of its three schools, while maintaining
small class sizes and continuing to be sensitive to the increasing reliance on property taxes. This, in an
environment of flat state aid support and increases in State mandates, means an evet-increasing utilization
of the current District’s resources without compromising educational programs,

These indicators were considered when adopting the budget for fiscal year 2011-2012. Budgeted
expenditures in the General Fund increased 2 percent to $23,905,363 in fiscal year 2011-2012, Increases in
contractual payroll, employee benefits, tuition and energy costs are the primary reasons for the increase.

In conclusion, the Cresskill School Diistrict has committed iself to financial excellence for many years. Its
system for financial planning, budgeting, and internal financial controls is audited annually and it plans to
continue to manage its finances in order to meet the many challenges ahead.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information contact the
Business Office, Cresskill Board of Education, One Lincoln Drive, Cresskill, NJ 07626,
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

EXHIBIT A-1

AS OF JUNE 30, 2011
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents h 1,081,428 $ 62,414 1,143,842
Receivables, net 138,550 2,448 140,998
Inventory 3,455 3,455
Deferred Charge 83,544 83,544
Capital Assets
Capital assets not being depreciated 48,630 48,630
Capital assets being depreciated 32,193,345 10,800 32,204,145
Total Assets 33,545,497 79,117 33,624,614
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 350,646 1,882 352,528
Payable to Other Governments 25,152 25,152
Accrued Interest Payable 354,761 354,761
Unearned Revenue 23,514 586 24,100
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due within one year 914,209 914,209
Due beyond one year 19,651,738 - 19,651,738
Total Liabilities 21,320,020 2,468 21,322,488
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 12,570,296 10,800 12,581,096
Restricted for
Capital Projects 225,000
Debt Service 1,725 1,725
Unrestricted (571,544) 65,849 (280,695)
Total Net Assets $ 12,225,477 $ 76,649 12,302,126

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net

Receivables From Other Governments

Other Receivables

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Pue to Other Funds

Payable to State Governments
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balance
Capital Reserve
Debt Service
Committed Fund Balance
Year-End Encumbrances
Assigned Fund Balance

Designated for Subsequent Year's

Expenditures
Year-End Encumbrances
Unassigned Fund Balance

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabitities and Fund Batances

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 201¢

EXHIBIT B-1

Speelal Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 1,048,436 $ 31,267 3 1,725 $ 1,081,428
98,992 4,562 103,554
25816 9,180 - - 34,996
$ 1,173,244 3 45,009 3 - $ 1,725 $ 1,219,978
$ 347,811 $ 2,683 $ 350,494
152 152
25152 25,152
6,346 17,174 - - 23,514
354,303 45,009 - - 399312
225,000 225,000
$ 1,725 1,725
33,731 33,731
225,000 225,000
18,467 18,467
316,743 - - - 316,743
818,941 - - £,725 820,666
$ 1,173,244 $ 45,009 b} - 3 1,725
Amcunts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets {A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds, The cost
of the assets is $41,085,961 and the accumulated depreciation
is $8,843,986. 32,241,575
The District has financed capital assets through the issuance of
general obligation bords and capital leases. The accrued interest at
year end is: (354,761)
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as
liabilities in the funds (See Note 2} (20,482,403)

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The accompanying Notes to the Bagsic Financial Staterments are an integral part of this statement
17
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OI' REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT B-2

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
Local Soutces
Property Tax Levy 21,892,509 $ 1,638,970 § 23,531,479
Tuition 1,075,871 1,075,871
Interest and Investment Income 30,043 13 30,056
Miscellaneous 245,747 150,447 - - 396,194
Total - Local Sources 23,244,170 150,447 13 1,638,970 25,033,000
State Sources 2,223,659 68,949 36,356 2,328,964
Federal Sources - 475,413 - - 475,413
Total Revenues 25,467,829 694,809 13 1,675,326 27,837,977
EXPENDITURES
Current
Instruction
Regular Instruction 10,409,448 196,287 10,605,735
Special Education Instruction 3,927,023 288,825 4,215,848
Other Instruction 781,751 788,751
School-Sponsored Activitics and Athletics 660,265 660,265
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services 3,752,861 112,971 3,865,832
General Administrative Services 645,140 645,140
School Administrative Services 1,526,459 1,526,459
Central Services/Admin Info. 555,965 555,965
Plant Operations and Maintenance 2,149,148 2,149,148
Pupil Transportation 431,983 431,983
Debt Service
Principal 64,115 805,000 869,115
Interest 5,836 870,326 876,162
Capital Outlay 384,636 96,726 - - 481,362
Total Expenditures 25,294,630 694,809 - 1,675,326 27,664,765
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 173,199 - 13 - 173,212
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Transfers Out (1,724) (1,724)
Transfers In - - - 1,724 1,724
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses - - (1,724) 1,724 -
Net Change in Fund Balances 173,199 - a,711) [,724 173,212
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 645,742 - 1,711 1 647,454
Fund Balance, End of Year 818,941 - - $ 1,725 3 820,666

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because;

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense,
This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capitaf outlay in the period,
Depreciation expense
Capital outlays

The issuance of long-term debt {e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of principal of long term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds, Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets.  This amount represents the net effect
of these activities:
Principal Repayments:

General Obligation/Refunding Bonds
Capital Lease Obligations

Governmental Funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.

Amortization of Deferred Amount on Refunding
Amortization of Original Issuance Premium
Amortization - Bond Issuance Costs

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the
governmental funds because interest is recorded as an expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus
requites the use of current financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, interest expense
is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due.

Decrease in Accrued Interest

in the statement of activities, cerfain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences are
measured by the amounts carned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the eamed amount
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconciliation; when the paid amount
exceeds the eaned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation,
Compensated Absences

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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EXHIBIT B-3

$ 173212

$  (882,552)

481,362
(401,190)
05,000
64,515
869,115
(4,485)
3,457
(1,557)
(8,585)
14,637
(25.079)
$ 622,110




ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash

Intergovernmental Receivable

State
Federal

Other Receivable
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets

Furniture, Machinery and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
Uncarned Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT B4

Business-Type

Non-Major Activities

Enterprise Enterprise Funds
Food Services Fund Totals
$ 62,414 b 62,414
55 35
729 729
1,664 1,664
3,455 - 3,455
68,317 - 68,317
136,521 136,521
(125,721) - (125,72%)

10,800 - 10,800
79,117 - 79,117
1,882 1,882
586 - 586
2,468 - 2,468
10,800 10,800
65,849 - 65,849
3 76,649 § - $ 76,649

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integrat part of this statement
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EXHIBIT B-5

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Business-Type

Non-Major Activities
Enterprise Enterprise Funds
Eood Services Fund Totals
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Daily Sales-Reimbursable Programs £ 338,192 $ 338,192
Other Sales- Special Functions 1,808 - 1,808
Total Operating Revenues 340,000 - 340,000
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Benefits 127,368 127,368
Cost of Sales 141,123 141,123
Management Fee 13,638 13,638
Other Purchased Services 3,369 3,369
Other Supplies/Services 43,866 43,866
Repairs 18,092 18,092
Refunds $ 23,094 23,094
Depreciation 1,012 - 1,012
Total Operating Expenses 348,468 23,094 371,562
Operating Income (Loss) (8,468) (23,004) (31,562)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
State Sources
State School Lunch Program 1,298 1,298
Federal Sources
National School Lunch Program 21,697 21,697
Special Milk Program 2,688 2,688
Interest 548 - 548
Total Nonoperating Revenues 26,231 - 26,231
Change in Net Assets 17,763 (23,094) (5,331)
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year 58,886 23,094 81,980
Total Net Assets - End of Year b 76,649 3 - 5 76,649

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of'this statement
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Received for Program Fees
Cash Payments for Salaries and Benefits
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments for Refunds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Received from State and Federal Subsidy Reimbursements

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital And Related Financing Activities
Purchase of Capital Assets

Net cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on Investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Reconcifiation of QOperating Loss to Net Cash
Used for Operating Activities
Operating Income/(Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income fo
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation
Food Distribution (USDA Commodities) National School Lunch
Change in Assets and Liabilities
{Increase)/Decrease in Other Accounts Receivable
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payabie
Increase/(Decrease) in Unearned Revenue

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities
Non-Cash Financing Activities

Fair Value of Food Distribution Program-
National School Lunch Program

EXHIBIT B-6

Business-Type

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement

Non-Major Activities
Enterprise Enterprise Funds

Food Services Fund Totals
340,000 $ 340,000
$ 4,730 4,730
{127,368) (127,368)
{224,317) (224,317)
- (23,094) (23,094}
(11,685) (18,364) (30,049)
17,007 - 17,007
17,007 - 17,607
(2,869) - (2,869)
(2,869} - (2,869)
548 - 548
548 - 548
3,001 (18,364) (15,363)
59,413 18,364 77,777
62,414 § - $ 62,414
(8,468) $ (23,094) § (31,562)
1,012 1,012
8,614 8,614
153 4,730 4,883
(525) (525)
(12,329) (12,329)
(142) - {142)
(3,217 4,730 1,313
(11,685) $ (18,364) $ (30,049)

8,614




EXHIBIT B-7

CRESSKILE BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCTIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

Unemployment
Compensation

Trust Fund Scholarship Fund Agency Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 44,845 § 67,676 $ 236,169
Due from Other Funds - - 152
Total Assets 44,8435 67,676 3 236,321
LIABILITIES
Payroli Deductions and Withholdings Payable $ 100,834
intergovernmental Payable - State 6,019
Due to Student Groups - - 135,487
Total Liabilitics 6,019 - b 236,321
NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Unemployment Claims
and Other Purposes b 38,826 b 67,676

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT B-8

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust Fund Scholarship Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employees $ 30,061
Private - $ 19,535
Total Contributions 30,061 19,535
Investment Earnings
Interest 450 445
Total Additions 30,511 19,980
DEDUCTIONS
Scholarship Awards 24,600
Unemployment Claims and Coniributions 63,637 -
Total Deductions 63,637 24,600
Change in Net Assets (33,126) (4,620)
Net Asscts, Beginning of the Year 71,952 57,122
Prior Period Adjustment - 15,174
Net Assets, End of the Year $ 38,826 $ 67,676

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Cresskill Board of Education (the “Board” or the “District”) is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established
to function as an education institution. The Board consists of nine elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of
the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.
Under existing statutes, the Board's dutics and powers incfude, but are not limited to, the development and adoption of a
school program; the establishment, organization and operation of schools; and the acquisition, maintenance and disposition
of school property.

The Board also has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval of the annual budget and the establishment of a
system of accounting and budgetary controls.

The reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are included to
ensure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary government consists of all funds,
departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the District. For the Cresskilt Board of Education this
includes general operations, food service, and student related activities of the District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. The District is
financially accountable for an organization if the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board
and (1) the District is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or
(2) the District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization’s resources; the District is legally obligated or
has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or the
District is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally
dependent on the District in that the District approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. Based on the
foregoing criteria, the District has no component units. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting
entity as a component unit.

B. Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both district-wide financial statements (based on the District as a whole) and fund
financial statements. Both the district-wide and fund financial statements categorize activities as either governmental
activities or business-type activities.

The district-wide financial statements report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Board of Education. For
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. In the statement of net assets, both the
governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) reflect on a
full accrual economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and
obligations.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or other governmental entities, including other school districts, who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Property taxes, unrestricted
state aid, and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the
tatter are excluded from the district-wide financial statements, Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The District considers all of its
governmental and its food service enterprise fund to be major funds.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The district-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements with the exception of the agency fund which
does not have a measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with these operations (with the exception of the
fiduciary funds) are included on the Statement of Net Assets. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e. when they are both
measurable and available). Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilitics of the current period. For this purpose, the Board considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
basis of accounting, with the exception of debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments which are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, tuition, unrestricted state aid, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Grants and similar awards are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have been met. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the District.

The District repotts the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the School District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District, except those to be accounted for in another fund.

The special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. This fund accounts for federal and state financial programs, with the exception of grants for

major capital projects and the child nutrition programs.

The capital projects fund accounts for the proceeds from the sale of bonds, lease purchases and other revenues used
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets.

The debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of principal and interest on
long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFECANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

The District reports the following major proprietary fund which is organized to be self-supporting through user charges:

The food service fund accounts for the activities of the school cafeteria, which provides food service to students as
well as a la carte and catering services for teachers and special events.

The District reports the following non-major proprietary fund which is organized to be self-supporting through user charges:

The Community Step to Independence (“CSI”) fund accounts for the activities of the education program which
provides life skills training to special education students aged 18-21.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund type:

The fiduciary trust fund is used to account for resources legally held in trust for the state unemployment insurance
claims, for private donations for scholarship awards, payroll related activities and student related activities which are
supported and controlled by student organizations and clubs. All resources of the fund, including any earnings on
invested resources, may be used to support the intended purpose. There is no requirement that any portion of these
resources be preserved as capital.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in
both the district-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or
contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Governments also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The Board has elected not to follow private-sector guidance issued subsequent to December 1, 1989.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the district-wide financial statements. Exceptions
to this general rule are charges between the Board’s proprietary and fiduciary funds since elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues in the district-wide statement of activities include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods or services, provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all property taxes, unrestricted state aid, investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenscs
generally tesult from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the food service enterprise fund and of the Community
Steps to Independence (“CSI”) enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. Federal and State
subsidies for the food service operation are considered nonoperating revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

L. Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are reported at fair value and are limited by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.
2. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other
funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due
to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activitics and business-type activities are
reported in the district-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected
to be uncollectible.

Tuition Revenues - Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The
charges are subject to adjustment when the final costs are determined and certified by the State Department of
Education.

Tuition Expenditures - Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 were based on rates established
by the receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been certified by the State
Department of Education.

Property taxes are levied pursuant to law and are collected by the municipality and are transferred to the District as
requested. Property tax revenue is recognized in the year they are levied and become available. Property taxes collected in
advance of the year-end for which they are levied and transferred to the District are reported as deferred revenues. The tax
bills are mailed annually in June by the municipal tax collector and are levied and due in four quarterly installments on
August 1, November 1, February 1 and May 1 of the fiscal year. When unpaid, taxes or any other municipal lien, or part
thereof, on real property, remains in arrears on April I¥ in the year following the calendar year levy when the same became
in arrears, the tax collector of the municipality shall, subject to the provisions of New Jersey Statute, enforce the lien by
placing the property on a tax sale. The municipality may institute annual “in rem” tax foreclosure proceedings to enforce the
tax collection or acquisition of title to the property.

3. Inventories

The cost of inventories of the governmental fund types are recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items
are purchased.

Food Service Fund inventories, exclusive of the federal commodities, are valued at cost, using the first-in first-out (FIFO)
method. The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) commodity portion of the Food Service Fund inventory
consists of food donated by the USDA. It is valued at estimated market prices by the USDA. The amount of unused
commodities at year-end is reported as unearned revenue.
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the district-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Board as assets with an initial,
individual cost of $2,000 and an estimated useful lifc in excess of two years. The District was able to estimate the historical
cost for the initial reporting of these capital assets through back trending. As the District constructs or acquires additional
capital assets each period, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land Improvements 20
Buildings 40
Building Improvements 20
Heavy Equipment 10
Office Equipment and Furniture 10
Computer Equipment 5

5. Compensated Absences

It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate (with certain restrictions) earned but unused sick Icave benefits.
A long-term liability of accumulated sick leave and salary related payments has been recorded in the governmental activities
in the district-wide financial statements, representing the Board’s commitment to fund such costs from future operations.
Proprietary Funds accrue accumulated sick leave and salary related payments in the period that they arc earned. A liability is
reported in the governmental funds only to the amount actually due at year end as a result of employee resignations and
retirements.

6. Long-term obligations

In the district-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Gains and losses resulting from debt refundings are
also deferred and amortized over the life of the refunded bonds or new bonds whichever is less using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount and refunding gains or losses. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

7. Fund Equity

Beginning with fiscal year 2011, the District implemented GASB Statement 54 “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions”. The Statement provides more clearly defined fund balance categories to make the nature and extent
of the constraints placed on a government’s fund balance more transparent, This statement established fund balance
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints
imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.

Restricted Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and
higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Capital Reserve — This restriction was created by the District in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.1 to fund future
capital expenditures (See Note 3.)

Debi Service — Represents fund balance restricted specifically for the repayment of long-term debt principal and interest
in the Debt Service Fund.

Committed Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its highest level of
decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
government takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint,

Year-End Encumbrances — Represents outstanding purchase orders at year end for contracts awarded by formal action of
the Board of Trustee’s for specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and
materials have not yet been received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.

Assigned Fund Balance — Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by the
governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority.

Desionated for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures — This designation was created to dedicate the portion of fund balance
appropriated in the adopted 2011/2012 District budget certified for taxes.

Year-Find Encumbrances — Represent outstanding purchase orders for goods or services approved by management for
specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and materials have not yet been
received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.

Unassigned Fund Balance — Represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been
restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

8. Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in the priot year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year’s
presentation.
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 2 RECONCILIATION OF DISTRICT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the district-wide
statement of net assets

The goveramental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental funds and net
assets — governmental activities as repotted in the district-wide statement of net assets, One element of that
reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $20,482,403 difference are as follows:

Bonds Payable $ 19,675,000
Less: Deferred charge on refunding (to be amortized as
interest expense) (31,392)
Less: Deferred charge for issuance costs (to be amortized
over life of debt) (83,544)
Add: Issuance premium (to be amortized as interest expense) 24,197
Capital leases payable 80,223
Compensated absences 817,919

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds
to arrive at net assets - governmental activities $ 20,482,403

NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

In accordance with the requirements of the New Jersey Department of Education (“the Department”), the District annually
prepares its operating budget for the forthcoming year. The budget, except for the general fund and special revenue fund,
which is more fully explained below and in the notes to the required supplementary information, is prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and serves as a formal plan for expenditures
and the proposed means for financing them. Capital lease transactions are accounted for on the GAAP basis.

The annual budget is adopted in the spring of the preceding year for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. The
District is not required to adopt an annual budget for the capital projects fund. The budget is submitted to the county
superintendent and is voted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budget adoptions and
amendments are recorded in the District's board minutes. The budget is amended by the Board of Trustees as needed
throughout the year. The budget for revenues, other resources, other uses, and fund balances is prepared by fund source and
amount. The budget for expenditures is prepared by fund, program, function, object and amount. The legal level of
budgetary control is established at the line item account within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest
(most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-
2A.2(m)1. The Board approved several budget transfers during 2010/2011. During 2010/2011 the Board increased the
original budget by $1,070,764. The increase was funded by prior year extraordinary aid appropriated, grant awards and the
reappropriation of prior year general fund encumbrances.
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

A. Budgetary Information (Continued)

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
in the Notes to Required Supplementary Information (RSI). Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of
formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in the governmental funds. Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable
appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as committed
and/or assigned fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments
refated to unperformed contracts for goods and services which are reappropriated and honored during the subsequent fiscal
year.

B. Capital Reserve

A capital reserve account was established by the District on October 2, 2000. The accumulation of funds will be used for
capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve is maintained in the general fund and its activity
is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan
(LREP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by
appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts or both. A district may also appropriate additional
amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a
special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-
14.1(g), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its
approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 is as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2010 $ -
Increases

Deposits Approved by Board Resolution 225,000
Balance, June 30, 2011 $ 225,000

The June 30, 2011 LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted capital projects is $5,195,700.
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and Investments

Deposits

The Board's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), Securities Investor
Protection Corporation (SIPC) or New Jersey's Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Board is required
to deposit their funds in a depository which is protecting such funds pursuant to GUDPA. The New Jersey Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act requires all banks doing business in the State of New Jersey to pledge collateral equal to at least
5% of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the average amount of its public funds in excess of 75% of its
capital funds or $200 million for all deposits not covered by the FDIC.

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. SIPC replaces cash claims up to a
maximum of $250,000 for each failed brokerage firm. At June 30, 2011, the book value of the Board's deposits was
$1,492,532 and bank balances of the Board's cash and deposits amounted to $2,113,463. The Board's deposits which are
displayed on the balance sheets and statement of net assets as "cash" or “cash and cash equivalents” are categorized as:

Depository Account

Insured $ 2,113,463

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The Board does not have a policy for custodial credit risk., However, none of the
District’s bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments

The Board is permitted to invest public funds in accordance with the types of securities authorized by N.J.S.A, 18A:20-37.
Examples of the allowable investments are bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America, Government Money Market Mutual Funds, bonds or other obligations of the school district or
bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units within which the school district is located, Local Government investment
pools, and agreements or the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, if transacted in accordance with the above statute.

As of June 30, 2011, the Board had no outstanding investments.

Investment and interest earnings in the Capital Projects Fund are assigned to the Debt Service Fund in accordance with
Board policy.

B. Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2011 for the district’s individual major funds, in the aggregate, including the applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Special Food
General Revenue Service Total
Receivables:
Accounts $ 25816 $ 9,180 % 1,664 § 36,660
Intergovernmental 98,992 4,562 784 104,338
Total Receivables $ 124808 § 13,742 § 2,448 % 140,998
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Receivables (Continued)

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be
avaijlable to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection

with resources that have been received, but not yet earned, At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components
of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unearned

General Fund

Tuition Charges Receivable $ 6,340
Special Revenue Fund

Grant drawdowns reserved for encumbrances 17.174

Total deferred revenue for governmental funds $23.514
C. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:
Balance, Balance,
July 1, 2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:

Land $ 48,630 - - $ 48,630
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 48,630 - - 48,630
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Buildings and Building Improvements 38,970,595 § 117,162 39,087,757

Improvements Other Than Buildings 524,148 164,595 688,743

Machinery and Equipment 1,061,226 199,605 - 1,260,831
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 40,555,969 481,362 - 41,037,331
Less Accumulated Depreciation for;

Buildings and Building Improvements (6,643,184) (779,413) (7,422,597)

Improvements Other Than Buildings (453,926) (26,208) (480,134)

Machinery and Equipment (864,324) (76,931) - (941,255)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (7,961,434) (882,552) - (8,843,986)
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 32,594,535 {401,190) - 32,193,345
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 32,643,165 % (401,190) $ - $ 32,241,975
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C. Capital Assets {(Continued)

Ralance, Balance,
July 1, 2010 Increases Decreases June 30,2011
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Machinery and Equipment $ 133,652 § 2,869 - $ 136,521
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 133,652 2,869 - 136,521
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Machinery and Equipment (124,709) (1,012) - (125,721)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (124,709) (1,612) - (125,721)
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 8,943 1,857 - 10,800
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net  § 8,043 % 1,857 % - $ 10,800
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
Instruction

Regular b3 66,996
Total Instruction 66,996
Support Services

Support Services-Students 28,313

School Administration 3,933

Operations and Maintenance of Plant 783,310
Total Support Services 815,556
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 882,552
Business-Type Activities:

Food Service Fund $ 1,012
Total Depreciation Expense-Business-Type Activities $ 1,012
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D. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2011, is as follows:

Due to/from other funds

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Payroll Agency General Fund $ 152
Total $ 152

The above balances are the result of revenues earned or other financing sources received in one fund which are due to
another fund and/or expenditures paid by one fund on behalf of another fund and/or to cover cash balances which were in
an overdraft position.

The District expects all interfund balances to be liquidated within one year.

Interfund transfers

Transfer In:

Debt Service Total
Transfer Out:
Capital Projects Fund $ 1,724 § 1,724
$ 1,724 % 1,724

The above transfers are the result of revenues earned and/or other financing sources received in one fund to finance
expenditures in another fund.

E. Leases

Capital Leases

The District is leasing copiers, communication equipment and computers totaling $292,099 under capital lcases. The
leases are for terms of 3 to 5 years.

The capital assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental
Activities

Machinery and Equipment $ 292,099
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E. Leases (Continued)

Capital Leases (Continued)

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2011
were as follows:

Governmental
Year Ending June 30 Activities
2012 h 63,234
2013 21,508
Total minimum lease payments 84,742
Less: amount representing interest (4,519)
Prevent value of minimum lease payments $ 80,223

F. Long-Term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

The Board issued general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities. The full faith and credit of the Board are irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of the bonds and
the interest thereon.

Bonds payable at June 30, 2011 are comprised of the following issues:

$20,383,000, 2005 Bonds, due in annual

installments of $605,000 to $990,000

through February 1, 2031, interest at 4.375% $17,645,000
$2,520,000, 2008 Refunding Bonds, due in annual

installments of $230,000 to $270,000
through August 1, 2018, interest at 3.0% to 5.0% 2,030,000

$19,675,000

37



CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

F. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

The Board's schedule of principal and interest for long-term debt issued and outstanding is as follows: I

Governmental Activities:

Year Ending Serial Bonds
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2012 $ 835,000 % 838,124 § 1,673,124
2013 875,000 804,456 1,679,456
2014 910,000 768,940 1,678,940
2015 945,000 732,075 1,677,075
2016 990,000 693,326 1,683,326
2017-2021 5,295,000 2,813,747 8,108,747
2022-2026 4,945,000 1,716,969 6,661,969
2027-2031 4,880,000 634,375 5,514,375
$ 19,675,000 § 9,002,012 $ 28,677,012

Statutory Borrowing Power

The Board's remaining borrowing power under N.J.S. 18A:24-19, as amended, at June 30, 2011 was as follows:

4% of Equalized Valuation Basis (Municipal) $ 99,995,063
Less: Net Debt 19,675,000
Remaining Borrowing Power $ 80,320,063
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
F. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Changes in long-term liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Bonds Payable $ 20,480,000 $ (805,000) § 19,675,000 § 835,000
Add:

Unamortized Premiums 27,654 (3,457) 24,197
Less:

Unamortized Amount of Refunding (35,877) - 4,485 (31,392) -
Bonds Payable, Net 20,471,777 - {803,972} 19,667,805 835,000
Capital Leases/Lease Purchase Agreements 144,338 (64,115) 80,223 59,209
Compensated Absences 792,840 - 25,079 817,919 20,000

Governmental activity

Long-term liabilities $ 21,408955 $ - 3 (843,008 §  20,565947 § 914,209

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to property, general liability, automobile coverage, theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injurics to employees; student accident; termination of employees and
natural disasters. The Board has obtained commercial insurance coverage to guard against these events to minimize the
exposure to the District should they occur. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the statistical section
of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The District is a member of the Northeast Bergen County School Board Insurance Group (NESBIG). The Group is a risk
sharing public entity pool, established for the purpose of insuring against worker's compensation claims.

The relationship between the Board and the insurance fund is governed by a contract and by-laws that have been adopted by
resolution of each unit's governing body. The Board is contractually obligated to make all annual and supplementary
contributions to the funds, to report claims on a timely basis, cooperate with the management of the funds, its claims
administrator and attorneys in claims investigation and settlement, and to follow risk management procedures as outlined by
the funds. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of the funds attributable to a membership year during
which they were a member.
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Centinued)
A. Risk Management (Continued)

NESBIG provides its members with risk management services, including the defense of and settlement of claims and to
establish reasonable and necessary loss reduction and prevention procedures to be followed by the members. Complete
financial statements of the respective insurance funds are on file with the School's Business Administrator.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been any settlements in
excess of insurance coverage’s in any of the prior three years.

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement
Method”. Under this plan the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid
to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the
State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for
benefits paid and the ending balance of the District’s fiduciary trust fund for the current and previous two years:

Employee Amount Ending

Fisca! Year Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2011 $ 30,061 N 63,637 $ 38,826
2010 30,813 75,082 71,952
2009 28,604 31,336 115,448

B. Contingent Iiabilities

The District is a party defendant in some lawsuits, none of a kind unusual for a school district of its size and scope of
operation. In the opinion of the Board's Attorney the potential claims against the District not covered by insurance policies
would not materially affect the financial condition of the District.

Federal and State Awards — The Board participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially
funded by grants received from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the
appropriate grantor government. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the
Board may be required to reimburse the grantor government. As of June 30, 2011, significant amounts of grant expenditures
have not been audited by the various grantor agencies but the Board believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on
subsequent audits will not have a material effect on any of the individual governmental funds or the overall financial position
of the District.
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

C. Federal Arbitrage Regulations

The District is subject to Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code as it pertains to the arbitrage rebate on all tax-exempt
obligations, both fong and short-term debt. Under the 1986 Tax Reform Act, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) required
that all excess earnings from investment proceeds be rebated to the IRS. Arbitrage, for purposes of these regulations, is
defined as the difference between the yicld on the investment and the yield on the obligations issued, If there are excess
carnings, this amount may be required to be rebated to the IRS. At June 30, 2011, the District had no estimated arbitrage
earnings due to the IRS.

D. Emplovee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following contributory defined benefit public employee retirement
systems (retirement systems) covering substantially all eligible Board employees:

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) — Established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to
provide coverage, including post-retirement health care, to substantially all full time employees of the State or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State-administered
retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 8 to 10 years of service for
pension benefits and 25 years for post-retirement health care coverage.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — Established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to
provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time certified teachers or professional staff of
the public school systems in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of
service for pension benefits and 25 years for post-retirement health care coverage.

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following defined contribution public employee retirement
program covering certain state and local government employees which include those Board employees who are eligible
for pension coverage.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - established under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L.. 2007 and
Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 to provide coverage to elected and certain appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007.
Membership is mandatory for such individuals with vesting occurring after one (1) year of membership.

Other Pension Funds
The State established and administers a Supplemental Annuity Collective Trust Fund (SACT) which is available to active

members of the State-administered retirement systems to purchase annuities to supplement the guaranteed benefits provided
by their retirement system. The state or local government employers do not appropriate funds to SACT.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)
Other Pension Funds {(Continued)

The cost of living increase for PERS and TPAF, are funded directly by each of the respective systems and are considered in
the annual actuarial calculation of the required State contribution for the system.

According to state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should any
retirement system be terminated.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of each of the above systems. The
financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at
Www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the retirement systems are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions
are recognized when payable to the retirement systems. Benefits or refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the retirement systems.

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last
reported sales price at current exchange rates. Mortgages are valued on the basis of future principal and interest payments,
and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar instruments. The fair value of real estate investments is based on
independent appraisals. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair values.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, issues publicly available financial reports that
include the financial statements of the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund, Commeon Pension Fund A, Common
Pension Fund B, Common Pension Fund D and Common Pension Fund E. The financial reports may be obtained in writing
to the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, P.O. Box 290, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-
0290.

Significant Legislation
P.L. 2010, c. 1, effective May 21, 2010, made a number of changes to the State-administered retirement systems
concerning ¢ligibility, the retirement allowance formula, the definition of compensation, the positions eligible for service

credit, the non-forfeitable right to a pension, the prosecutor’s part of the PERS, and employer contributions to the
retirement system,
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Significant Legislation (Continued)

This new legislation changed the membership eligibility criteria for new members of TPAF and PERS from the amount
of annual compensation to the number of hours worked weekly. Also, it returned the benefit multiplier for new members
of TPAF and PERS to 1/60 from 1/55, and it provided that new members of TPAF and PERS have the retirement
allowance calculated using the average annual compensation for the last five years of service instead of the Jast three
years of service, New members of TPAF and PERS will no longer receive pension service credit from more than one
employer. Pension service credit will be earned for the highest paid position only. This law also closed the prosecutor’s
part of the PERS to new members and repealed the law for new members that provided a non-forfeitable right to receive a
pension based on the laws of the retirement system in place at the time five years of pension service credit is attained.
The law also requires the State to make its full pension contribution, defined as 1/7" of the required amount, beginning in
Fiscal Year 2012.

P.L. 2010, c.3, effective May 21, 2010, replaced the accidental and ordinary disability retirement for new members of the
TPAF and PERS with disability insurance coverage similar to that provided by the State to individuals enrolled in the
State’s Defined Contribution Retirement Program,

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the aggregate funded ratio for all the State administered
retirement systems including TPAF and PERS, is 66.0 percent with an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $45.8 billion.
The aggregate funded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for the State-funded systems is 62.0 percent and $30.7 biliion,
and the aggregate finded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for Jocal PERS and Police and Firemen’s Retirement
System (*“PFRS”) is 72.1 percent and $15,1 billion.

The funded status and funding progress of the retirement systems is based on actuarial valuations which involve estimates of
the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of
future events,

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the
retirement systems in effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the
cmployer and members at that point in time. The projection of benefits for financing reporting purposes does not explicitly
incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and
members in the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
In the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost method, and the five year
average of market value was used as the asset valuation method for the retirement systems. The actuarial assumptions

included (1) 8.25 percent for investment rate of return for the retirement systems and (2) 5.45 percent for projected salary
increases for the PERS and 5.74 percent for TPAF.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Employer and Employee Pension Contributions

The contribution policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and contributions are required by active members and
participating employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation with
the amount of contributions by the State of New Jersey contingent upon the Annual Appropriations Act. As defined, the
retirement systems require employee contributions based on 5.5% for PERS, 5.5% for TPAF and 5.50% for DCRP of the
employee’s annual compensation.

Annual Pengion Costs (APC)

Per the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27 for the year ended June 30, 2011 for TPAF, which is a cost sharing plan
with special funding situations, annual pension cost differs from the annual required contribution. For PERS, which is a cost
sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan, the annual pension cost equals contributions made. TPAF employer
contributions are made annually by the State of New Jersey to the pension system on behalf of the Board. PERS employer
contributions are made annually by the Board to the pension system in accordance with Chapter 114, P.L. 1997. In the
DCRP, which is a defined contribution plan, member contributions are matched by a 3% employer contribution.

During the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 the Board was required to contribute for PERS and DCRP and the
State of New Jersey was required to contribute for TPAF for normal cost pension and accrued liability contributions
(including non-contributory group life insurance (NCGI)) the following amounts:

Year Ended On-behalf
June 30 PERS TPAF DCRP
2011 $ 256,882 A 36,178 $ 2,512
2010 204,347 37,479
2009 176,360 36,419

During the last three fiscal years, the State of New Jersey did not contribute to the TPAF for normal cost and accrued
liability. The State contributed $36,178, $37,479 and $36,419 during 2010/2011, 2009/2010 and 2008/2009, respectively,
for the NCGI premium only.

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A, 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $909,553 during the year ended
June 30, 2011 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on their base
salaries. This amount, along with the on-behalf TPAF pension contribution, has been included in the district-wide financial
statements and the fund financial statements as a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB No. 24.

E. Post-Retirement Medicail Benefits

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the post-retirement health benefit program plans for school districts. The
Plans are cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans.
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F. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

As a result of implementing Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for
Post-employment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans (OPEB), effective for Fiscal Year 2007, the State Health Benefits
Program (SHBP), and the Prescription Drug Program (PDP), and Post-Retirement Medical (PRM) of the PERS and TPAF
are combined and reported as Pension and Other employee Benefit Trust Funds in the State’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR). Specifically, SHBP-State, PDP-State, and the PRM of the PERS are combined and reported as a
Health Benefits Program Fund — State classified as a single employer plan. The SHBP-Local, PDP-Local, and the PRM of
the TPAF are combined and reported as Health Benefits Program Fund -Local Government classified as a cost-sharing
multiple-employer plan in the State’s CAFR. The post-retitement benefit programs had a total of 514 state and local
participating employers and contributing entities for Fiscal Year 2010.

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following health benefit programs covering certain state and local
government employees, including those Board employees and retirees eligible for coverage.

Health Benefits Program Fund (HBPF) — Local Education (including Prescription Drug Program Fund) — The State of
New Jersey provides free coverage to members of the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund who retire from a board of
education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement. Under the provisions of P.L. 1992, c.126,
the State also provides free coverage to members of the Public Employees’ Retirement System and Alternate Benefits
Program who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement if the
member’s employer does not provide this coverage. Certain local participating employers also provide post-retirement
medical coverage to their employees. Retirees who are not eligible for employer paid health coverage at retirement can
continue in the program if their employer participates in this program or if they are participating in the health benefits plan of
their former employer and are enrolled in Medicare paits A and B by paying the cost of the insurance for themselves and
their covered dependents. Also, education employees are eligible for the PDP coverage after 60 days of employment.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of the above Fund. The financial
reports may be accessed via the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website
at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the health benefit programs are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer
contributions are recognized when payable to the health benefit programs. Benefits or refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the health benefit programs.

Significant Legislation
P.L. 2010, ¢.2 effective May 21, 2010, makes changes to the SHBP-State/Local Government/Local Education concerning
eligibility, cost sharing, choice of a plan, the application of benefit changes, the waiver of coverage, and multiple coverage

under such plans. It also requires contributions toward the cost of health care benefits coverage by public employees and
certain retirees.
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION {Continued)

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported at fair value, Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair
values.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the State had a $56.8 billion unfunded actuarial accrued
liability for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) which is made up to $20.5 billion for state active and retired members
and $36.3 billion for education employees and retirecs that become the obligation of the State of New Jersey upon
retirement.

The funded status and funding progress of the OPEB is based on actuarial valuations which involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the future. These amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of future
events.,

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the OPEB in
effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the employer and members
at the point in time. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential
effects of legal contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost shating between the employer and members in the
future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the June 30, 2009, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost method, and the market
value was used as asset valuation method for the OPEB. The actuarial assumptions included 4.50 percent for investment rate
of return for the OPEB.

Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.1. 1990, c.6 required the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS), respectively to fund post-retitement medical benefits for those State employees and education
employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. As of June 30, 2010,
there were 87,288 retirces receiving post-retirement medical benefits and the State contributed $883.8 million on their
behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State and in accordance with P.L.. 1994, ¢.62.
Funding of post-retitement medical benefits changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal
year 1994,

The State is also responsibie for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, ¢.126, which provides free health benefits to members of

PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education with 25 years of service. The State paid
$126.3 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 14,050 eligible retired members in fiscal year 2010.
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions (Continued)

The State sets the contribution rate based on a pay as you go basis and not on the annual required contribution of the
employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The State’s
contributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund for TPAF retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School
District for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $768,417, $694,786 and $682,381, respectively, which
equaled the required contributions for each year . The State’s contributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund for
PERS retirees’ post-retitement benefits on behalf of the School District was not determined or made available by the State of
New Jersey.

NOTE 6 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The District recorded a prior period adjustment to its July 1, 2010 Scholarship Fund net assets to reflect an additional
scholarship account previously omitted from the financial statements.
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REVENUES
Local Sources

Property Taxes
Tuition- Individuals
Tattion- Other LEAS
Related Services Provided to Other LEAs
Interest
Rentals

Student Activity/Athletic Fee
Miscellaneous

Total Local Sources

State Sources
Categorical Special Education Aid
Extraordinary Special Education Costs Aid

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201§

EXHIBIT C-1

On-behalf TPAF Pension System Contributions (Non-budgeted)

Non-Costritutory Group Lifc Insurance

Post Retirement Medical Benefit Contribution
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions

(Non-Budgeted)
Total State Sources

Totai Revenues

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES
Regular Programs - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Kindergarten
Grades |-5
Grades 6-8
Grades 9-12
Regular Programs - Home Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Purchased Professionai-Educational Services
Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction
Other Purchased Services

General Supplies
Textbooks

Total Regular Programs

Special Education
Cognitive-Mitd
Salaries of Teachers
QOther Salaries for Instruction
Purchased Professional-Educational Services

Other Purchased Services
General Supplies

Total Cognitive Mild

Variance
Original Budget Finat Final to
Budget Transfers Budpet Actual Actual
$ 21,852,509 21,892,509 21,892,509
301,654 301,654 419,191 117,537
638,597 638,597 656,680 18,083
66,521 96,521
29,568 29,968 30,043 75
89,940 29,940 22,366 (67,574)
50,000 50,000 44,227 (5,773)
30,000 - 30,000 82,633 52,633
23,032,668 - 23,032,668 23,244,170 211,502
63,006 63,066 63,066
99,381 90,381 359,613 260,232
36,178 36,178
768,417 768,417
- - - 909,553 909,553
162,447 - 162,447 2,136,827 1,974,380
23,195,115 - 23,195,115 25,380,997 2,185,882
378,535 § {37,224) 341,311 340,328 983
2,455,574 (17,378) 2,438,196 2,427,800 10,396
1,482,977 42,000 1,524,977 1,522,880 2,097
2,796,659 33,863 2,830,522 2,830,522
2,500 (2,500)
1,500 3,599 5,099 5,099
28,141 28,141 28,141
146,948 33,241 180,189 179,219 970
248,775 14,760 263,535 262,289 1,246
44,010 2,289 46,299 44,415 1,384
7,557,478 100,791 7,658,269 7,640,693 17,576
130,140 {10,308) 119,832 119,832
45,794 (406) 45,388 45,388
5,000 {5,000)
588 588 588
15,000 1,367 16,367 16,362 5
195,934 (13,759 182,175 182,170 5
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EXHIBIT C-1
CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES {Continued)
Speciat Education (Continued)
Learning and/or Language Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers $ 448,759 % 1,384 § 450,143 § 450,143
Other Salaries for Instruction 115,802 (7.572) 108,230 108,230
General Supplies 2,470 {1,508) 962 960 § 2
Textbooks 2,895 (362) 2,533 2,533 -
Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities 509,926 {(8,058) 561,868 561,866 2
Multiple Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers 53,885 (464} 53,421 53,421
Other Salaries for Instruction 22,505 (328) 22,177 22,177
General Supplies 400 609 1,009 1,009 -
Total Multiple Disabilitics 76,790 (183) 76,607 76,607 -
Resourge Room/Resource Center
Salaries of Teachers 878,645 1,583 880,228 880,228
Other Salaries for Instruction 12,684 (124} 12,560 12,560
General Supplies 4,910 (1,010} 3,900 3,900 -
Total Resource Room/Resource Center 896,239 449 896,688 896,688 -
Autism
Salaries of Teachers 37,543 37,543 37,543
Other Salaries for Instruction 57,570 57,570 57,570
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 21,225 21,225 21,225
General Supplies - 25,962 25,962 25,284 678
Total Autism - 142 300 142,300 141,622 678
Preschool Disabied- Part Time
Salaries of Teachers 70,357 918) 69,439 69,439
Other Salaries for Instruction 28,562 (2,028) 26,534 26,534
General Supplies 5,000 859 5,859 5,859 -
Taotal Preschool Disabled-Part Time 103,919 (2,087) 101,832 101,832 -
Total Special Education 1,842,808 118,662 1,961,470 1,960,785 685
Basic Skills/Remedial
Salaries of Teachers 388,618 8,123 396,741 396,741
General Supplies 300 (300) B - -
Total Basic Skilis/Remedial 388 018 7,823 396,741 396,741 -
Bilingual Educatioen
Salaries of Teachers 271,312 (94,337) 176,975 176,555 420
General Supplies 1,500 (1,500 - - -
Total Bilinguat Education 272,812 (95,837 £76,975 176,555 420
School Sponsored Co/Extra Curricular Activities
Salaries 56,540 12,538 69,078 67,991 1,087
Supplies and Materials 10,975 42,635 53,610 45,200 8,410
Other Objects 9,620 (3,288) 6,332 6,332 -
Total School Sponsored Co/Extra Curricular Activ, 77,135 51,885 129,020 119,523 9,497
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EXHIBIT C-1
CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2011

Yariance |
Original Budget Final Final to ;
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual i
EXPENDITURES i
CURRENT EXPENDITURES {Centinued) I
School Sponsored Athletics |
Salarics $ 276,595 § 3,618 % 280,213 % 280,213 |
Purchased Services 25,150 (2,589) 22,561 22,561
Supplies and Materials 37,500 4,217} 33,283 31,918 % 1,365
Other Objects 33,106 {3,411} 29,695 29,695
Transfer to Cover Deficit (Agency Funds} 50,000 (255} 49,745 49,745 -
Total School Sponsored Athletics 422,351 (6,854) 415,497 414,132 £,365
Totat - Instruction 10,561,502 176,470 10,737,972 10,708,429 29,543
Undistributed Expenditures
Instruction
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State - Special 646,615 {57.491) 589,124 589,124
Tuition to County Voc. School Disteicts - Regular 126,900 44,400 171,300 171,300
Tuition to CSSD & Regional Day Schools 117,300 300 117,600 117,600
Tuition - Private School for the Disabled
- Within State 416,871 55,533 472,404 472,404
Tuition to Psiv. Sch, Disabled & Other Leas
Spl, O/S State 121,274 735 122,009 122,009 -
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction 1,428,960 43,477 1,472,437 1,472,437 -
Attendance & Social Work
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 30,000 2,500 32,500 32,500 -
Total Attendance & Social Work 30,000 2,500 32,500 32,500 -
Health Services
Salaries 223,644 45,589 269,233 269,233
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 8,200 6,150 14,350 14,350
Supplies and Materials 2,600 (116} 1,884 i,884 -
Total Health Services 233,844 51,623 285,467 285,467 -
Speech, OT, PT & Related Services
Salaries 372,431 63,359 435,750 435,790
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 201,690 {91,509) 110,183 116,181
Supplies and Materials 4,700 (221) 4,479 4,479 -
Total Speech, OT, P & Related Services 578,821 (28,371) 550,450 550,450 -
Other Support Services - Students - Extra Services
Saiaries 453,304 23,904 477208 477,208
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 189,345 18,492 207,837 206,613 1,224
Supplies and Material 2,400 875 3,275 3,275 -
Total Other Support Services-Students-Extra Sves 645,049 43,271 688,320 687,096 1,224
Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 406,357 (6,804) 399,553 399,553
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 30,830 142 30,972 30,972
Purchased Professional-Educationa} Services 3,500 (1,232) 2,268 2,268
Other Purchased Services 2,050 (967) 1,083 1,083
Supplies and Materials 6,950 (4,312) 2,638 2,636 2
Total Guidance 449,687 (13,173) 436,514 436,512 2
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EXHIBIT C-1

GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

|
|
|
CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2011
|
|
|

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budgpet Transfers Budget Actual Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Undistributed Expenditures (Continied)
Child Study Team
Salaries of Other Professional Staff $ 475,383 § 13,468 § 488,851 § 488,851
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistanis 48,505 (6,903) 41,602 41,602
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 48,400 {16,002) 32,368 32,398
Misc Purchased Services 250 39 289 289
Supplies and Materials 500 3,478 3,978 3,978 -
Tota! Child Study Team 573,038 {5,920) 567,118 567,118 -
Improvement of Iastructional Services
Salaries of Supervisor of Instruction 138,500 138,500 138,500
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 5,000 2,279 7.27% 7,279
Salaries of Secr and Clerical Assist. 23,500 (8,023) 15,477 15,477
Other Cbjects 800 (740) 60 60 -
Total Improvement of Inst. Serv. 167,800 (6,484} 161,316 161,316 -
Educational Media Services/School Library
Salaries [71,745 6,006 177,751 177,751
Salaries of Technology Coordinators i12,251 (5123) 111,128 i11,128
Supplies and Materials 21,169 (2,527 18,642 18,642 -
Total Educational Media Services/School Library 305,165 2,356 307,521 307.521 -
Instructional Staff Traising Services
Sataries Superv. Of Instruction 1,200 1,200 1,200
Other Purchased Services 50,000 {12,258) 37,742 37,742 -
Total Instructional Staff Training Services 50,000 (11,058) 38,942 38,942 -
Support Services General Administration
Salaries 288,350 {4,428) 283,922 283,922
Legal Services 28,000 7,857 35,857 35,857
Audit Fees 25,000 {2,600} 22,400 22,400
Architectural/Engineering Services 14,500 5,250 19,750 12,250 § 7,500
BOE Other Purchased Services 50 50 50
Other Purchased Professional Services 17,390 15,824 33,214 33,214
Communications/Teiephone 38,450 1,159 39,609 38,749 860
Misc. Purchased Services 39,340 (61} 39,279 39,279
General Supplies 1,000 (680} 320 320
BOE In-House Fraining/Meeting Supplies 2,000 (153) 1,847 1,847
Miscellaneous Expenditures 2,630 26,893 29,523 29,521 2
BOE Membership Dues and Fees 12,900 {(931) 11,969 11,969 -
Totai Support Services General Administration 469,560 48,180 517,740 509,378 8,362
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Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued}
Undistributed Expenditures {Continued)
Support Services School Administration
Salaries of Principals/Asst. Principals $ 726,774 % 20274 % 747,048 % 747,048
Salarics of Other Prof. Staff 143,735 - 143,735 143,735
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 258,536 (26,139) 232,397 232,397
Qther Purchased Services 1,800 1,800 1,800
Supplies and Materiais 20,064 13,485 33,549 33,549 -
Total Support Services Scheol Administration 1,149,109 9,420 1,158,529 1,158,529 -
Central Services
Salaries 237,793 29,224 267,017 266,631 § 386
Purchased Technical Services 32,722 19,828 52,550 52,550
Misc, Purchased Services 2,000 7 2,007 2,007
Supplies and Materials 4,000 73 4,073 4,070 3
Miscellaneous Expenditures £,450 (45) 1,405 [,405 -
Total Central Services 277,965 49,087 327,052 326,663 389
Admisn. Info. Tech
Salaries 99,050 (50) 99,000 99,000
Purchased Technical Services 32,100 (62) 32,038 32,038 |
Other Purchased Services 13,150 (12,501) 649 649 |
Supplies and Materials 14,000 {10,008) 3,992 3,992 -
Total Admin. Info. Tech 158,300 {22,621) 135,679 135,679 -
Required Maintenance for School Facilities
Salaries 91,942 2,415 94,357 94,357
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 199,385 3,196 202,581 201,832 749
General Supplies £5,000 422 15,422 15,422 -
Total Required Maintenance for School Facilities 306,327 6,033 312,360 311,618 749
Cuslodial Services
Energy (Gasoline) 2,700 3,151 5,851 3,672 2,179
Salaries 760,352 1,196 761,548 761,548
Purchased Professionat and Technical Services 6,800 3,662 10,462 10,462
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 25,040 (17,885) 7,155 7,155
Renal of Land & Bldg Oth. Than Lease Pur Agrmt 20,000 (10,000} 10,000 10,000
Other Purchased Property Services 106,125 (11,049} 95,076 94,277 796
Insurance 102,550 (2,843} 99,707 99,707
General Supplies 72,500 18,781 91,281 91,281
Energy (Electricity) 434,500 (78,015} 356,485 338,520 17,965
Other Objects 2,000 (1,305) 695 695
Salaries of Non-Insiructional Aides 25,000 (66) 24,934 24,934
Energy (Natural Gas}) 167,500 (70,294) 97,206 90,836 6,370
Total Custodiat Services 1,725,067 (164,667) 1,560,400 1,533,087 27,313
Care and Upkeep of Grounds
Salaries 60,855 (5,0560) 55,799 55,799
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Svc. 16,200 56,666 72,866 69,166 3,700
General Suppiies 20.000 21,130 41,130 7,401 33,729
Total Care and Upkcep of Grounds 97.055 72,740 169,795 132,366 37.429
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISCON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2811

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Undistributed Expenditures (Continued)
Student Transportation Services
Contracted Services {Other Than Between Home
and School) - Vendors § 94,625 § 30,726 % 125,351 § 114,868 % 10,483
Contracted Services { Sp Ed Stds)-Joint Agreements 298,300 (19,899) 278,401 266,448 11,953
Coniracted Services (Reg. Siudents)-ESCs & CTSAs 40,040 10,627 50,667 50,667 -
Total Student Transportation Services 432,965 21,454 454,419 431,983 22,436
Unallocated Benefits
Social Security Contributions 275,000 (19,9513 255,049 248,063 6,986
Other Retirement Contributions- PERS 230,000 26,882 256,882 256,882
QOther Retirement Contributions - Regular (DCRP) 2,512 2,512 2,512
Unemployment Compensation 205,000 (205,000)
Workmens Compensation 114,000 358 114,358 114,358
Health Bencfits 2,784,766 {57,151) 2,727,615 2,595,350 132,265
Tuition Reimbursement 25,000 - 25,000 25,000
Other Employee Benefits 74,285 34,988 109,273 103,531 5,742
Totat Employee Benefits 3,708,051 (217,362) 3,490,689 3,345,696 144,993
On-behalf Congributions
On-behalf TPAF Pension System Contributions (Non-Budgeted)
Non-Contributory Group Life Insurance 36,178 (36,178)
Post Retirement Medical Benefit Coniribution 768,417 (768,417)
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions
(Non-Budgeted) - - - 909,553 (909,553)
Total On-Behalf Contributions - - - 1,714,148 (1,714,148)
Total Undistributed Expenditures 12,786,763 (119,515) 12,667,248 14,138,499 (1,471,25%)
Total Expenditures - Current Expenditures 23,348,265 56,955 23,405,220 24,846,928 (1,441,708)
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Equipment
Instruction
Grade 1-5 7,096 7,096 7.096
Grade 9-12 43,789 43,789 43,789
School Spons & Other Instr. Prog. 5,608 5,008 5,008
Undistributed
Admin Info Technology 4,301 4,301 4,301
Required Maint, For School Facilities 23,198 23,198 23,198
Care and Upkeep of Grounds - 19,487 19,487 19,487 -
Total Equipment - 102,879 102,879 102,879 -
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Construction Services 281,757 281,757 281,757
Other Objects 63,066 - 63,066 63,066 -
Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services 63,066 281,757 344,823 344,823 -
Total Capital Outiay 63,066 384,636 447,702 447,702 -
Total Expenditures 23,411,331 441,591 23,852,922 25,294,63(} (1,441,708)
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FExcess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Scurces (Uses)
Transfer In - Capital Projects

Totai Other Financing Sources

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures and Other Sources

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

Recapitulation
Restricted Fund Balaace
Capital Reserve
Committed Fund Balance
Year-End Encumbrances
Assigned Fund Balance
Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures
Year-Ead Encumbrances
Unassigsned Fund Balance

Reconciliation to Governmental Funds Statements (GAAP)

State Aid Revenue Not Recognized on GAAP Basis
Extraordinary Aid

Fund Balance per Governmental Funds (GAAP)

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISCGN SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20611

EXHIBIT C-1

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
$ {216,216) {441,591) § {657,807) § 86,367 § 744,174
(216,216} {441,591} {657,807} 86,367 744,174
1,092,187 - 1,092,187 1,092,187 -
$ 875,971 % {441,591} § 434380 % 1,178,554 § 744,174
8 225,000
33,731
225,000
18,467
676,356
1,178,554
(359,613)
b 818,941
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EXHIBIT C-2

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Ovriginal Budget Final Variance
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
State $ 97,983 $ 97,983 $ 72,831 § (25,152)
Federal 8 83,527 373,494 457,021 449,287 (7,734)
Local Sources
Miscellaneous 14,454 157,696 172,150 163,738 (8,412)
Total Revenues 97,981 629,173 727,154 685,856 (41,298)
EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Salaries of Tcachers 16,000 16,000 16,000
Tuition 288,825 288,825 288.825
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 191 88,427 38,618 62,442 26,176
Textbooks 10,856 16,856 10,563 293
Supplies 22,298 107,532 126,830 118,435 11,375
Other Objects 5,600 {5,000) - - -
Total Instruction 27,489 506,640 534,129 496,285 37,844
Support Scrvices
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 56,952 (1,016) 35,936 55,936 -
Purchascd Professional-Educational Services 35,392 35,392 34,009 1,383
Other Purchased Services £,025 23,026 24,051 23,026 1,625
Total Support Services 57.977 57,402 115,379 112,971 2,408
Unallocated Benefits
Employee Benefits 3,000 3,000 6,000 6,000 -

Facilities Acquisition and Construction

Instructional Equipment 9,515 62,131 71,646 70,600 1,040
Noninstructional Equipment - - - - -

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction 9,515 62,131 71,646 70,600 1,046

Total Expenditures 97,981 629,173 727,154 685,856 41,298

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Qver/(Under) Expenditures - - - . -

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year - - - . -

Fund Balances, End of Year $ - 3 - 5 - $ - 3 -
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EXHIBIT C-3
CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year, For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration: of the governmental fund
types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Funds are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The grant
accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgstary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records
are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The following presents a reconciliation of the General and Special Revenue Funds from the budgetary basis of accounting
as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund and Special Revenue Fund to the GAAP basis of
accounting as presented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds.

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund

Sources/Inflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) revenue from the
budgetary comparison schedule (Exhibits C-1 and C-2) $ 25380997 3% 685,856

Difference - Budget to GAAP
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recognized.
Encumbrances, June 30, 2010 26,127
Encumbrances, June 30, 2011 (17,174)

State Aid revenue recoghized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements (2009-2010) 446,445
State Aid revenue recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements (2010-2011) {359,613 -

Total revenues as repotted on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds § 25467829 $ 694,809

Uses/Qutflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) total outflows from the
budgetary comparison schedule $ 25294630 % 685,856

Differences - Budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not
received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes
Encumbrances, June 30, 2010 26,127

Encumbrances, June 30, 2011 - (17,174}

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2) $ 25294630 § 694,809

56




SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES
EXHIBITS D-1, D-2 AND D-3
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EXHIBIT E-2

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECTAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF PRESCHOOL EDUCATION PROGRAM AID EXPENDITURES
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOT APPLICABLE
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Revenues
Interest and Investment Income

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Other Financing Uses
Transfers Out - Debt Service Fund

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenues

Fund Balance, July 1, 2010

Fund Balance, June 30, 2011
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13

1,724

1,724

(1,711)

1,711




SCHEDULE F-2a

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
2005 REFERENDUM
RENOVATIONS TO HIGH SCHOOL
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Revenues
State Sources - SDA Grant $ 7,759,722 $ 7,759,722
Bond Proceeds 16,698,646 16,698,646
Local Sources - Interest 373 373
Other Financing Sources
Transfer from Capital Reserve 139,729 139,729
Transfer from Capital Outlay 100,271 - 100,271 -
Total Revenues 24,698,741 - 24,698,741 % 24,698,741
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 3,840,880 3,840,880
Construction Services 20,857,697 20,857,697
Transfer to Debt Service Fund - b 164 164 -
Total Expenditures 24,698,577 164 24,698,741 24,698,741
Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures $ i64 § {164) § - $ -

Additional Project Information:

Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized $ 16,698,646
Bonds Issued 16,698,646
QOriginal Authorized Cost 23,849,846
Additional Authorized Cost -
Revised Authorized Cost 24,698,741
Percentage Increase Over Original

Authorized Cost 0.00%
Percentage Completion 100.00%
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date 2008/09
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE F-2b

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
2006 PROJECT

INTERIOR DOOR REPLACEMENT - EDWARD H. BRYAN SCHOOL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues and QOther Financing Sources
State Sources - SDA Grant
Transfers from Capital Reserve

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services
Transfer to Debt Service Fund

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
76,524 $ 76,524
115,515 - 115,515 -
192,039 - 192,039 192,039
38,456 38,456
152,864 152.864
- $ 719 719 -
191,320 719 192,039 192,039
719 8§ (719) § - -
192,525
192,039
0.00%
100.00%
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SCHEDULE F-2¢

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
2006 PROJECT
INTERIOR DOOR REPLACEMENT - MERRITT MEMORIAL SCHOOL
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources - SDA Grant $ 46,093 $ 46,093
Transfers from Capital Reserve 69,966 - 69,966 -
Total Revenues 116,059 - 116,059 § 116,059
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services 115,231 - 115,231 116,059
Transfer to Debt Service Fund - $ 828 828 -
Total Expenditures 115,231 828 116,059 116,059
Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures $ 828 3§ (828) % - $ -

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost b 116,610
Additional Authorized Cost -
Revised Authorized Cost 116,059

Percentage Increase Over Original

Authorized Cost 0.00%
Percentage Completion 100.00%
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
COMMUNITY STEP TO INDEPENDENCE ("CSI'") PROGRAM FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 201

Non-Major
Enterprise
Fund

EXHIBIT G-1 ‘

ASSETS

|

Current Assets |
Cash

Intergovernmental Receivable
Other -

Total Current Assets -

Total Assets -

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable -

Total Current Liabilities -

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted -

Total Net Assets $ -

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
COMMUNITY STEP TO INDEPENDENCE ("CSI") PROGRAM FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

OPERATING EXPENSES

Refunds
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss
Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Total Net Assets - End of Year

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT G-2

Non-Major
Enterprise
Fund

23,094

23,094

(23,094)

(23,094)

23,094




EXHIBIT G-3
CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
COMMUNITY STEP TO INDEPENDENCE ("CSI'") PROGRAM FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Non-Major
Enterprise
Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received for Program Fees 3 4,730
Cash Payments for Refunds (23,094)
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities {18,364)
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (18,364)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 18,364

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ -

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash

Used for Operating Activities
Operating Income/(Loss) b (23,094)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Change in Assets and Liabilities

{Increase)/Decrease in Other Accounts Receivable 4,730
Total Adjustments 4,730
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities 3 (18,364)

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
EXHIBITS G-4, G-5 AND G-6

NOT APPLICABLE



FIDUCIARY FUNDS



EXHIBIT H-1

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011
Student Total
Activity Pavroll Agency Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 135,487 % 100,682 §$ 236,169
Due from Other Funds - 152 152
Total Assets $ 135,487 $ 100,834 § 236,321
LIABILITIES
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings Payable $ 100,834 § 100,834
Due to Student Groups $ 135,487 - 135,487
Total Liabilities 3 135,487 % 100,834 § 236,321
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EXHIBIT H-2

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOT APPLICABLE

EXHIBIT H-3
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2011
Balance, Balance,
July 1, June 30,
2619 Additions Deletions 2011
ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS
Merritt $ 4,327 § 5,023 % 4,547 % 4,803
Bryan 15,521 14,840 27,048 3,313
HIGH SCHOOL
Cresskill High School 129,988 480,623 483,240 127,371
Total $ 149836 $ 500,486 § 514,835 § 135487
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LXHIBIT H-4
CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
PAYROLL AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance, Balance,
July 1, June 30,
2010 Additions Deletions 2011
ASSETS
Cash $ 81242 $ 16,871,903 § 16,852,463 § 100,682
Total Assets $ 81,242 § 16,871,903 § 16,852,463 § 100,682
LIABILITIES
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings $ 81,017 $ 7,079300 % 7,059,483 § 100,834
Accrued Salaries and Wages 9,780,750 9,780,750
Due to/{from) Other Funds 225 11,853 12,230 {152)
Total Liabilities 3 81,242 § 16,871,903 $ 16,852,463 % 100,682
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Cresskill Board of Education's comprehensive annual financial report

presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government's

overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the government's financial performance and well-being have changed
aver time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the govern-
ment's most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the afforda-
bility of the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the
government's ability to issue additional debt in the future,

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the government's finan-
cial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the government's financial report

relates to the services the government provides and the activities it performs.

Exhibits

J-1to J-5

J-6to J-9

J-10 to J-13

J-14 and J-15

J-16 to J-20

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
{Unaudited)
{madified accrual basiy of accotnting

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

EXHIBIT J-4

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2018

Reveres

Tax Levy $15,770,724 $ 16,761,010 $ 17,350,996 § 18,760,894 $ 20,145,439 $ 21,537,369 $ 22,062,479 $ 22,663,737 $ 23,531,479

Tuitlion Charges 12,544 40,573 69,579 160,260 292 449 399,569 477,446 591,877 1075871

Interest Earnings 30,000 22,850 113,274 780,476 634 844 254,691 45,173 21,365 30,056

Misceitaneous 181,565 150,873 79,591 104,552 169,457 282,265 339,480 22421 396,194

State Sources 2,081,941 2,270,158 2,727,412 3,626,866 10,234,271 6,222,112 2,943,554 3,402,615 2,328,964

Federal Sources 202,659 251,187 293,400 311,993 340,679 360,642 356,445 705,557 475,413
Total Revenue 18,279,433 19,497,251 30,634,652 23,745,041 31,817,129 29,057,278 26,224,577 21,606,366 27,837,977
Expenditures
[nstruction

Regular Instruction 8,141,458 8,491,300 8,923,195 9,524 318 10,396,236 10,682,218 13,305,610 10,655,035 10,605,735

Special Education Instruction 2,492,707 2,629,837 2,955,080 3,635,103 3,862,119 4,097,215 4,826,400 3,788,911 4,215,848

Other Instruction 676,227 715,809 677,279 815,878 949,130 839,494 133,758 196,752 781,751

Schoo! Spensored Activities and Athletias 468,752 482,881 542518 526,197 672,973 631,377 650,037 676,480 660,265
Support Services:

Student and Inst. Related Services 2,236,628 2,565,307 2,539,327 2,831,276 2,790,717 3,459,432 3,637,630 3,874,855 3,865,832

General Administrative Services 381,465 556,581 600,311 527,755 592,497 587,381 559,005 522,683 645,140

School Administrative Services 1,088,614 1,137,043 1,044,709 1,138,652 1,309,062 1,345,135 1,345,719 1,463,553 1,526,459

Central Services/Business Services 271,128 253,353 438,608 416,387 458,609 319,102 756,933 565,484 553,963

Plant Operations And Maintenance 1,409,319 1,494,176 1,586,372 1,560,230 1,656,952 1,888,119 1,963,669 2,363,401 2,149,148

Pupil Trarsportation 492,997 520,773 551,851 595,641 723,936 790,467 587,325 544,104 431,983
Capital Outlay 2,808 159,516 523,034 2,862,931 19,318,560 8,659,051 530,246 142,248 481,362
Debt Service:

Principal 140,000 145,000 177,743 174,482 137,427 701,522 904,068 914,640 869,115

Interest and Other Charpges 165,064 158,367 157,198 812,706 1,026,301 1,096,695 917,839 912,781 876,162

Advance Refunding Escrow 49,332

Cost of Issuance - - 62,097 - - 56,643 - - B
Totat Expenditures 18,058,167 19,310,445 21,121,275 25,421,556 44,494,459 35,423,183 26,921,239 27,220,897 27,664,765
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues

Over {Under) Expenditures 221,266 186,806 {486,623) (1,676,515} (12,677,320} (6,3635,905) (696,662} 388,469 173,212
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Bond Sale Proceeds 20,383,000 2,520,000

Capital Leases (Non-Budgeted) 13,570 83,415 4,569 280,023 292,099

Premium on Sale of Bonds 296 38,025

Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent (2,442,000)

Accrued Interest on Bond Sale 22,220

Transfers In 14,565 97,184 (841,032) 544,349 387,366 35,764 287 1,724

Transfers Oul {14,565) - (97,154) 841,032 {544,349) (381,366) {35,764) (287) (1,724)
Total Other Financing Seurces (Uses) 13,570 83,415 20,410,085 - 280,023 408,124 - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances § 234836 $ 270221 3 19923462 $ {1,676,515) § (12,397,297) & (5957781} § (696662 § 388469 3 173,212
Debt Service as a Percentage of

Noncapitat Expenditures 1.70% 1.38% 1.66% 4.38% T01% 6.72% 6.90% 6.75% 6.42%

* Noncapilal expenditures are total expenditures less capital outlay.

Mote:

GASE requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. However, since the District implemented the new reporting modet
conlained in GASB Ma. 34 in fiscal year 2003 only nine years of infornation are available. Hach year thereafler, an additional

year's data wiil be included untii ten yenzs of daia is present.
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EXHIBIT J-7

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
Per $100 OF Assessed Valuation

Total Direct |

School Tax

Rate |

Cresskill Total |

Local Overlapping Rates Direct and
Calendar School Municipality of County of Overlapping
Year District Cresskill Bergen Tax Rate

2002 $1.90 $0.79 $0.34 $3.03
2003 $2.01 $0.83 $0.34 $3.18
2004 (1) $1.02 $0.45 $0.18 $1.65
2005 $1.10 $0.49 $0.20 $1.79
2006 $1.13 $0.52 $0.22 $1.87
2007 $1.19 $0.57 $0.23 $1.99
2008 ‘ $1.23 $0.61 $0.26 $2.10
2009 $1.27 $0.66 $0.29 $2.21
2010 $1.33 $0.70 $0.27 $2.30
2011 $1.35 $0.73 $0.27 $2.35

(1) The Borough undertook a revaluation of real property effective January 1, 2004,

Source: Tax Duplicate, Borough of Cresskill
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Taxpayer

CNL Retirement Suni Cresskift
Care One at Dunroven

MTX Wealth Mang-D. Carl Trust
P.S. Realty, LL.C.

Song, Jian Bo

Kings Supermarket [nc.

Sancheti, Ashok & Kumar

Wi 1. Collings Trust

Silverback Assoc. Trust

Hajjar, John and Sharon

Scurce: Municipal Tax Assessor

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS,
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

{Unaudited)
2011
Taxable % of Total
Assessed District Net
Value Assessed Value
$ 30,000,000 1.69%
7,000,000 0.39%
4,785,000 0.27%
4,127,500 0.23%
3,986,200 0.22%
3,791,000 0.21%
1,503,400 0.20%
3,401,200 0.19%
3,268,300 0.18%
3,248,800 0.18%
$ 67,111,400 3.78%
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EXHIBIT J-8

2002

Taxable % of Total
Assessed District Net
Value Assessed Vatue

NOT AVAILABLE

%




EXHIBIT J-9

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

Collected within the Fiscal Year of

Fiscal Local School the Levy

Year District Taxes Collections in
Ended Levied for the Percentage Subsequent

June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years

2002 $ 14,478,490 14,478,490 100.00%

2003 15,770,724 15,770,724 100.60%

2004 16,761,010 16,761,010 100.00%

2005 17,350,996 17,350,996 160.00%

2006 18,760,894 18,760,894 100.00%

2007 20,145,439 20,145,439 100.00%

2008 21,537,369 21,537,369 100,00%

2009 22,062,479 22,062,479 100.00%

2010 22,663,737 22,663,737 100.00%

2011 23,531,479 23,531,479 100.00%

Source: District records
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS
{Unaudited)

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Fiscal Percentage of
Year General Actual Taxable
Ended Obligation Net General Bonded Value of
June 30, Bonds Deductions Debt Quistanding Property
2005 $ 23,457,000 $ 23,457,000 1.37%
2006 23,297,000 23,297,000 1.31%
2007 22,632,000 22,632,000 1.26%
2008 22,020,000 22,020,000 1.23%
2009 21,255,000 21,255,000 1.19%
2010 20,480,000 20,480,000 1.15%
2011 19,675,000 19,675,000 1.11%

Source: District records

Note:
GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. As a result of the implementation of GASB No. 44
in fiscal year 2006 only seven years of information is available, Each year thereafier, an additional year's data will be

included until ten years of data is present.
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(UNAUDITED)

Municipal Debt:
Cresskill Board of Education (as of June 30, 2011)
Borough of Cresskill

Total Direct Debt

Overlapping Debt Apportioned to the Municipality:
Bergen County:
County of Bergen (A)
Bergen County Utilities Authority - Water Pollution (B)

Total Overlapping Debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

20,255,000
12,065,182

32,320,182

9,164,526
2,470,636

11,635,162

43,955,344

(A) The debt for this entity was apportioned by dividing the Municipality's 2010

equalized value by the total 2010 equalized value for Bergen County.

(B) Overlapping Debt was computed based upon municipal flow to the Authority.

Sources:

Borough of Cresskill 2010 Annual Debt Statement
BCUA 2010 Audit

Bergen County 2010 Annual Debt Statement
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EXHIBIT J-14

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
County School
Year Ended Unentployment Per Capita District
December 31, Rate Income (1) Population
2003 3.6 $ 50,862 7,861
2004 3.0 54,095 8,145 |
2005 2.3 56,435 8,368
2006 2.5 61,264 8,336
2007 2.2 67,113 8,553
2008 2.9 67,696 8,553
2009 5.2 64,388 8,615
2010 5.3 N/A 8,614
2011 N/A N/A (E) 8,614

(E) Estimate

N/A - Not Available

Source: United States Bureau of Census
School District Records
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS,

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
{Unaudited)

2011

EXHIBIT [-15

2002

Percentage of
Total Municipal
Employer Employees Employment Employees

Percentage of
Total Municipal
Employment

INFORMATION NOT AVAILABLE
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/TROGRAM
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Function/Program

Instruction
Regular
Special Education

Support Services:
Student and Instruction Related Services
General Administration
School Administrative Services
Central Services
Administrative Information Technology
Plant Operations And Maintenance
Pupil Transportation

Total

Source: District Personnel Records

Note:

GASB requires that ten years of statisticat data be presented. As a result of the implementation of GASB No. 44

EXHIBIT J-16

(Unaudited)

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
89 91 109 112 119 124 132
10 30 31 33 30 13 26
24 23 27 22 17 435 445
3 3 8 3 3 3 2
1 10 12 12 12 12 11
3 3 3 3 3 3
2 2 2 2 2 t
16 16 16 17 17 19 20

1 1 - - - - -
179 179 203 202 203 219.5 239.5

in fiscat year 2006 only seven years of information is available. Each year thereafter, an additional year's data wili be

included until fen years of data is present.
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EXHIBIT J-18
CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
{Unaudited)
2006 2007 2068 2009 2010 2011
District Building
Elementary
Edward H, Bryan School
Square Feet 48,738 48,738 48,738 48,738 48,738 48,738
Capacity (students} 378 378 378 378 378 378
Enrollment 520 532 548 474 478 465
Merrill Memorial School
Square Feet 42,540 42,540 42,540 42,540 42,540 42,540
Capacity (students) 313 313 313 313 313 313
Enrollment 335 338 354 280 299 304
Middle School/High School
Square Feet 140,261 140,261 141,769 141,769 141,769 141,769
Capacity (students) 956 956 956 956 956 956
Enroliment 750 782 784 938 965 976

Number of Schools at June 30, 2010
Elementary =2
Junior/Senior High School =1

Source: District Records

Note:

GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. As a result of the implementation of GASB No. 44

in fiscal year 2006 only six years of information are avaitable, Each year thereafter, an additional year's data will be
included until ten years of data is present,
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EXHIBIT J-20

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE
JUNE 30, 2011
{Unaudited)
Coverage Deductible
School Package Policy - Selective Insurance Group
Property Blanket Building & Contents $ 38431000 § 5,000
General Liability

General Aggregate 2,000,000

Products Completed Operations 2,000,000

Personal & Advertising Injury 1,000,000

Each Occurrence 1,000,000

Fire Legal Liability 1,000,000

Medical Expense 5,000
Commercial Auto Policy - Selective Insurance Group 1,000,000 1,000
Umbrelia Liability Policy - American Alf Ins. 9,000,000
Excess Umbrella Liability Policy - Firemen's Fund 50,000,000

{Shared limit among all Boards)

Boiler & Machinery - Selective Insurance Group 41,376,218 5,000
Bonds
Public Official Bond - Bus, Admn. 50,000
Public Official Bond-Treas. Of School Monies 250,000
Environmental Impairment Liability - American Safety 204,000,000
Source School District's records (Group Aggregate)

Each Impairment Aggregate Limit Per Insured: 3,000,000 15,000
School Board Legal Liability - ACE USA 1,000,000 5,000
Employment Related Practices Liability 1,000,000 10,000
Crime

Employee Dishonesty 00 Per Employee 5,000

$400,000 Per Loss 100,000

Forgery & Alteration 50,000 1,000
Workers' Compensation

BI by Accident - Each Accident 1,000,000

BI by Accident - Each Employee 1,000,000

BI by Discase - Policy Limit 1,000,000

Employers Liability Retained Limit 250,000
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP

EXHIBIT K-1
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS
17 - 17 ROUTE 208
FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410
TELEPHONE (201) 791-7100
DIETER P. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA FACSIMILE (20 791-3033
f - - ' ELIZABETH A. SHICK, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY J. VINCi. CPA, RMA, PSA WWW.LVHCPA.COM ANDREW PARENTE, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY W, HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA, PSA
JEFFREY C. BLISS, CPA, RMA, PSA DEBORAH K. LERCH, CPA, PSA
PAUL J. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA DEBRA GOLLE, CPA
DONNA L. JAPHET, CPA, PSA CINDY JANACEK, CPA, RMA

JULYUS B. CONSONI, CPA, PSA RALPH M. PICONE, CPA, RMA, PSA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL = s cra
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Trustees
Cresskill Board of Education
Cresskill, New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cresskill Board of Education as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011, which collectively comprise the Cresskill Board of Education’s basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated November 18, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and
* Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Cresskill Board of Education is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Cresskill Board of Education’s internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cresskill Board of
Education’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Cresskill Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Cresskill Board of Education’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis.
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EXHIBIT K-1

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cresskill Board of Education’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by
Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey and which are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2011-1 and 2011-2.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Cresskill Board of Education in a separate report entitled,
Auditors’ Management Report on Administrative Findings — Financial, Compliance and Performance” dated November 18,
2011.

Cresskill Board of Education’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Cresskill Board of Education’s responses and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Trustees, others within the District,
the New Jersey State Department of Education and other federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Soeeh Ve # Vdgga 10

LLERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

lic School Accountants
Donna L. Japhet

Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS002314

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
November 18, 2011
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS EXHIBIT K-2
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS

17 - 17 ROUTE 208
FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410
TELEPHONE (201} 791-7100
FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035

DIETER P. LERCH, CPA, RMA, P5A ELIZABETH A. SHICK, CPA, RMA, PSA
WWW . LVHCPA.COM

GARY 4. VINCI, CPA, RMA, P5A ANDREW PARENTE, CPA, RMA, PSA

GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA, PSA

JEFFREY C. BLISS, CPA, RMA, PSA DEBORAHE K. LERCH, CPA, FSA

PAUL J. LERCH, CPA, RMA, P5A DEBRA GOLLE, CPA

DONNA L. JAPHET, CPA, PSA CINDY JANACEK, CPA, RMA

JJLIUS B. CONSONI, CPA, PSA RALFH M. PICONE, CPA, RMA, P5A

EDWARD N. KERE, CPA

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Trustees
Cresskiil Board of Education
Cresskill, New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the Cresskill Board of Education’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB Circular
04-04 State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Cresskill Board of
Fducation’s major state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Cresskill Board of Education’s major state
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. Compliance with the requirement of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major state
programs is the responsibility of the Cresskill Board of Education’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on Cresskill Board of Education’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory
Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments

and Non-Profit Organizations and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants,
State Grants and State Aid. Those standards and circulars require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Cresskill
Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion, Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on Cresskill Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements.
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EXHIBIT K-2

In our opinion, Cresskill Board of Education complied, in all material 1'espects,.with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

vy

Internal Control Over Comipliance

Management of Cresskill Board of Education is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to state programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered Cresskill Board of Education’s internal control over compliance with requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on a major state program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Trustees, others within the District,
the New Jersey State Department of Education and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to

be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
: |
5@0& Vinei & Wigguna., L1 P

LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
lic School Accountants
@’L
Donna L. Japhet
Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS002314

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
November 18, 2011

93



(T6T6) & = - § €0£3 § (GO0E 8 - s (z6) S TLTELY § 900 - 5 {{¥€TE 8
.
@oce) = - AT GLeeny B [673) LBT6YY CIgLIg - (366245)
- PR - - B - - 62011 - (6z0°11)
M - L0 81071
* - 66611 (666°T1)
M LT81 (tz8'1) PTO'SH <0ZEET (181681}
® - b LET (1 1ET)
« CETTIE £EZ°11E
" (68) 68
M - A Fel ¥L9T @y (00s72)
- - Loy Lt
- (51¥) Siv 986°0€ 68L°LE (5L} (c0g's)
* Siv - (si¥) £ St
* - 000E 0L5°Z1 {szo'D {sv5'8)
(8L5°8) = LEOF (119°2) 652'TT 959°L1 SE'L 5
* © g £
* - 68511 {685°LT)
(r86) * E8E°1 (99£'7} £65'1T 605°0F
*
{6zi) M 98¢ [G)) - - SBEVT T6lve - [
- = - - - - E 3TL - - §CL
= 985 5 \ 988°L TLFR
* - ¥z [§374]
(s * (1s0) 889°C 1£8T
* - 34 (9Ek) 3
(85} %« (8L5) s £30°E1 $ 05zl
*
¥
*
S[QEATIINY “ FOTEETS INTIATY BUEATRY WY JESISEIPY  SUnNpEsdXy | poARy TORGEY 0002 1 0T
d¥VD =« o3 an( P SHENoIY) IqBAIDY A1elaspng s8] MIAGALIED) sruefeg
OWANW =« T10Z Qs 2unf AIA0ALIED

€M LIFTHXA

EI0T '€ ANNE CHANT G¥EA TVOISIA HHE M04

9LEEL
81071
&69°CT
1E48LE
£F1°70€
££2LLE
6£8°T
169°T
Lr
969'LY
SLy
99r'6 1
19T'sT
SITET
6292

SLETT

L0TEI
LY
TELE
289'T
BEYTL
£80°C1

Mﬂ-mmﬁaﬁ
paemy

$

2JULISISSY [BIOUBLL] SIEIS PUE SPIRMY [RIIP3] O saumipuadxy jo s3[npayog 03 sepo N Swifueduioony aag

OL/TE/8-60/1/6
1/TE/8-0V/1/6

1L/OE/9-60/1/6
HAL960/ 16
OL/TE/8-60/1/6
1I1E/8-01/L/6
60/1£/8-80/1/6
QL/LE/B-60/ /6
LI/LE/8-60/1/6
OL/1E/8-60/1/6
[L/1E/8-60/1/6
GL/TE/8-60/1/6
L1/1¢/8-01/1/6
60/1E/8-80/1/6
Q1/1€/8-60/176
L1/1€/3-01/1/6

01/0£/9-60/1/6
1L0E/8-01/1/6
01L/08/9-60/1/6
HALS01/1/6
0L0E/9-60/1/6
11/0£/9-01/1/6

ecn |
JuBISy

SAVAY TVHAGIA 10 SN LIANTIXE 40 A FLTIHOS
NOILVONQH 10 @IVOd TIDISSTHD

01-0660-8d
11-0660-8d
010THSYVEdY
0L0TYSV IV
01-0660-L4
TI-0660-14
S0-06609TON
Q106609 TON
01-06609 1IN
O1-06609ION
0I-0660E TN
01-0660ETON
11-06608TON
$0-06609TIN
01-06608 TN

L1-0660dTON

Taquiny IToLy
J1BJS 0 JUBIL)

€LI'Y8
AR
76548
16£°+8
LT6FS
708
VORI'tS
Vo81'vE
vo81've
VSOL¥8
YEOLPs
V59EHE
YS9£'be
2LOCHS
BLOCHS
vLOCHS

§55°0L
SE€01
$5e0L
95601
$55°01
§6¢°01

hwﬂ Emmw

VaID
Py

WPy SIS [RISPa] © 01 }2ALqNS JOU ST I0INSKT SY L AION

EoL
woEonpE JO udunedsc g [P0

[eoydsald-g Ved 'Y aQT
ooyosald-g Hed v a1
VEEV-100Yesald-g Med VI QT
VHgv-omeg -g Mol YEAT
owseg g Hed VETT

sised - Ve VI
ALRIML 913N

ALBLL ATON

AT 9PULL €ION

reerSusu] [ 9L €ION
sreaSzunu] 11 2L €YIN

111 9L FTON

TI1 3L 907N

VI 2L ION

VI 5L TIIN

VI oML ETON

DORBINPY JO JuSmIBdI(] LIS YIncIY)-pIsseg
uoneIRPT Jo Jul umpreda (g

simnouSy jo wsunedsE g [@IOL

DURISISSY YSB-UON ~ W0l Youn [oohog euonen
BOUBISISSY USE)-UON-UWRIS0LE YOUn-T [00yog fRUOREN
wessoid HIA] [Fads

urIgorg [N [proadg

ABURSISEY YSBY) - UBIBOLJ YOURT [00YIE [BUOLEN
SOURISISSY YSEY) - WRIHOL YOURT [00Y2G [RUCKHEN

uGEdRpY JO s uedaq aieig qInoxy)-passeg
FIIEILITY J0 I mERda] "g)

SV WETA0LE
FHOIUTAD) [IN0UY ] -SSEJ/IOULIO/ IS

99



FTUCSTSFY [BEOUY] SIS U SPIEMY [RIIPD JO I 30 sa[Opayag 0} satan BuLiued: a0g
TiEires | § {o1578) e 8 - € GhrEsy $ L6TEE 5 - € LILTrPl 8§ EESZOST 0§ - ¢ QUETEr % Nnpay 2aig o1 P2AGRg PUCESSY (FRURILY AES (HO]
- - - = - - - UTFesE L1F890) - - LIF'BL THOSS01,  T00608-pE0-001-[1 TEOIPAN] WRTITAY 1504 IV L SITUSE-U0
(321°9€) LBLT9E) UL TWOUSOUIL  LO0$605PE0001-TI “QLIGDY MAHSAS AU T/ L JIRUPE-UD
PUR [AAUOD)
ROYETUTINS] NPRY I3ty
0] J331qRg 30N] TSIV [CPACAL] MG
LT 3 (9E5TH) §lET s - € GPITEH + L6T6E & - § TIELhTE § Btalite § 0 - € BIEE 8 SOUTSHSY [AURLL 3G MOl
HETT (G - - 633 - - RETT (T4 - [ P ssudmng [@ma g
- N - B - - - B b - [52] SIET QLAALYBOTH £20-0SEL-010-000-01 weBol] XN [QOURG TEUATEN
86T'1 teg) (s} 86T'1 iza} 8621 LUOSSNLL  STOOSE0-010-001-(1 WIH0L] YAV [OOSR [FUOFEN
] esudsequz
9EI - B i - B - SR EEH K - pung TIPS K 1910].
B3 - - - B = - SSE9E SEESE = - 9SE'9E [LOE90UTH  SLOROTIS-bLOS6111 woddng #IRIS -y FMAS WK
3RS 193]
THREE - TWIEE - - (AT = TEREL 8616 - 1876t PRy snuaATY [E0NS (10T
- - = - = 1599 - - = - 1957 L5 QLSS 9900T1SPE0-001-0T vononnsu] [muawatddng
w%os 6Ty Uos nes LLES TUOSAFOTL S90FOTIS-HE0-D01-TT GORETLOSI] [PUATsIgang
- - oiLs LG 0097 OLOENFEVLL  990-0Z1S-FEG-DOT-0F Y
el £495 £1E01 86§ E 9WSIT THOERFOUIL  990F0T 1S HEG-001-TE HRIG AIOMID
- - 678 T8 SEIE QUOTSSIIL  990rOTISTE0-00L-01 TOREOYISSTTy PUR UOSRUILEN
L5001 war 4001 466F1 §66'F1 TOEA-OUTL  990-0LISHE0-001-t UOESIEETT) Pt UOHEUTURNE
SaDlALag ﬁoab-ﬂzgmz
- - 605°1 606°1 406°C OLALSS0/LL  B90-GT1E¥EQ-D0L-0] TonEpodstEs]
osL'e - osL'e Ly o8L'S LQESOUL  BIC-OELE-vE0-DOL-T1 uoRECsEES].
- - 1S s PE1'S1 OUOLSBILL  L90-DZISPED~001-01 COUEINPT AlejEsTIdme)
529’6 629 6296 20651 806'1 WOESROI/LY,  (90-0TISPE0-001-11 UGINPE AOIBSUATE]
- - 26CT 8657 8LL'wl OLOUSSO/LL  LOO-DZISHI00GI-01 SBENNTT] PUOIZS B ST YSITUT
665°L 951°¢ 565°L seetl ssCil [LOS901/IAL LSO-DEIS+E0-00T-11 ogenzie ] PO ¢ S0 USIFTUE
- SDLALSE ATCHINY
PR Tl FORTI ¥ Tl ¥98EL [LOS9OUTL OL0-0TISPET00T-11 sE0ARG Blrisam
- - 600t £ s00L SITEL OUQEFBOITL  PSO-OTTS-E0-00T-0L PR YOOUNRL
$95°0L 6T £ 9570k 958°01 se8'0L NRLFOULE  PO0OZISPLO00T-1L PV 400QqINIL
PIY DQRAuc); Avslef mep
PR 9nTasaY TEAE
LEROLIT CI8°T6) - - {re07zee) - - LTE9ETT T0E9LTT - (B9EI6K) P 1320 TR
- - - N - - - N ZIsE - [ QLT 164 QLAOE60/ L TO0-S605-PE0-00E-0T ¥BL ALM3ag @905 TYdL
55606 HE )] s {1srzs) £55°606 TLOLIR £65'606 [0SR OUTL  200r$605-PE0-OBI-LT XEL AUn2ag [2008 IV
LIFRSL LIvESL cirasL L18'89L [UOES0UTE  L00r$608-bE0-00I-TT QER00 TPUDE [BIIPRH WRLAMaY 150
8LI9E B SLT'9E sLL9E [UOGOUTL L0 E60S-PEQ-ODI-LT SIBMSU] AOTRGHINOHON
UOQRALNS]) BOTSIAL JIGSY VO SV AL
- - SDELHE (£08°Lre) £08'LHE QUOTGUTL  PROTOTES HE0GarOT PIY SI5C0) PH U5 AIPMIPIORAXT
£1965€ {E19658) s £19°685 £19'66¢ TUOE/S-OUIL SEPOTES-PEO-001-TT Prv S0 Pg (0§ Aermponnsg
- - tigot (Ire'on 180221 AT/0E/9-80¢ L/L BRO-07 5-FE0-56501 pry Aimoog
- - £5L°9 LLers) ors'ag QUOESEULL  PTO-OTISPE0-SEP-0T PHY BONTHGASURL]
- rel'I8 (reTI8)  § €156 CUOER-EHTIL  $30-DTIS-FEG-§68-0T Pry [EaLadaTe) UoHTNPY (619308
90 ES £ 990°€2 $ 990 H 990't 5 [TONTOULL  680-OZISHE0Ser-1l PRy [FOHOFITE} UONTINRT RS
esuBING WAL
TIREINPY JO lUIGITUI MRS
seamipuAIxy 2qEAIINY 1murcigy INTIATY {aIgeAy spuejeg pajosuE]) sazmppead sy paatayeyd jenomy 9197 “[ Afar ROy pouag aaqrany yretoly S, IEEIB0I/I01UTIN JTIS
=10, AYYS o) g PAIINZNT sUncY) SRR 0] dneeg AfcyaEpng 5ED) FEPLICI LY ‘aoncieg paesy 1R 2TIF 10 JURID
augrmuny TI07 0% SUnp 30
BT pangey

TLOZ *0¢ ANMEN CRONT TYIX TVISLI THL ¥0I
FADNYISISSY TVIDNYNIA ALYLS JO STUALIGNIIXT L0 FINAFHOS
NOLLYNI(A 40 GavOd TIENSSTED
P-4 LTI




EXHIBIT K-5
CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE I GENERAL

The accompanying schedules present the activity of all federal and state financial assistance programs of the Cresskill Board
of Education. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1(A) to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal financial
assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through
other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules are presented using the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded
in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described
in Notes 1{C) to the Board's basic financial statements.

NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison
statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related
legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas
for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on a modified accrual basis with the exception of the revenue
recognition of the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-
4472.. For GAAP purposes, those payments are not recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and
recording of certain state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying
schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, which may include the delayed state aid payments, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue
fund also recognizes the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.I.S.A. 18A:22-44.2,

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is an increase of $86,832 for the general fund
and an increase of $8,953 for the special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds.
Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as
presented as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ 2,223,659 § 2,223,659
Special Revenue Fund $ 475,413 68,949 544,362
Debt Service Fund 36,356 36,356
Food Service Fund 24,385 1,298 25,683
Total Financial Assistance $ 499,798 § 2,330,262 $ 2,830,060
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EXHIBIT K-5
CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 4 RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules may not necessarily agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports due to timing differences between the District’s fiscal year and grant program years.

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION

Revenues and expenditures repotted under the National School Lunch Program as non-cash assistance represent current year
value received and current year distributions, respectively of the Federal Food Distribution Program. TPAF Social Security
contributions in the amount of $909,553 represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the employer’s share of social
secutity contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2011, The amount reported as TPAT Pension System
Contributions in the amount of $36,178 and TPAF Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions in the amount of
$768,417 represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for the year ended June 30, 2011.

NOTE 6 ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS NOT SUBJECT TO STATE SINGLE AUDIT
On-behalf State Programs for TPAF Pension and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions are not subject to a State
single audit and, therefore, are excluded from major program determination. The Schedule of State Financial Assistance

provides a reconciliation of State financial assistance reported in the District’s basic financial statements and the amount
subject to State single audit and major program determination.
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CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part I — Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statement Section

Type of auditor's report issued: Ungualified

EXHIBIT K-6

Internal control over financial reporting:
1} Material weakness(es) identified? yes

2) Were significant deficiency(ies) identified that were
not considered to be material weaknesses? ves

Noncompliance material to the basic financial
statements noted? X yes

Federal Awards Section

Not Applicable
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X

no

none reported
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EXHIBIT K-6

CRESSKILL BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT'D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2011

Part I — Summary of Auditor’s Resulls

State Awards Section

Internal Control over compliance:

1)  Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

2)  Were significant deficiency(ies) identified that were
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported

Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs: Ungqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 04-04, as amended? yes X none

Identification of major programs:

State Grant/Project Number (s) Name of State Program
11-100-034-5095-002 TPAF Social Security Tax
11-100-034-5120-473 Extraordinary Special Education Aid

Doliar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and $ 300,000

Type B Programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
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EXHIBIT K-6
CRESSKILL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of
contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2911-1:

Our audit of budget account charges in the General Fund, revealed expenditures for facilities renovations were
not charged to the proper budget line accounts. The financial statements and budget accounts were adjusted to
reclassify these expenditures from Current Expense — Operations and Maintenance to the proper Capital Outlay
budget line item account.

Criteria or specific requirement:

The Uniform Minimum Chart of Accounts for New Jersey Public Schools, 2008 Edition and NJAC 6A:23.2.2(f).
Condition:

Line item account determinations were not being carefully reviewed and/or monitored, which resulted in certain
misclassifications.

Questioned Costs:

None. .
Context:

The District misclassified $281,757 of capital outlay purchases to Operations and Maintenance — Cleaning,
Repair and Maintenance Services in the General Fund.

None — financial statements have been adjusted for audit presentation.
Cause:
Unknown.

Recommendation:

The District reference the Budget Guidelines to ensure that facilities renovations are being classified to the
proper budget line accounts.

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated it will review and revise its procedures to ensure
corrective action is taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
CRESSKILL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of
contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards.

Finding 2011-2:

Our audit of the capital assets noted $281,757 of unrecorded additions due to the misclassification of certain
Capital Outlay expenditures in the General Fund.

Criteria or specific requirement:

Capital Asset Accounting and Financial Reporting
Condition:
See Finding 2011-2,

Questioned Costs:

None.
Context:

Due to the misclassification of building and other improvements as repair and maintenance, $281,757 of capital
asset additions were omitted from the capital asset report.

Effect:

The District’s capital asset records do not agree with actual values of District owned assets as reported in the
current year CAFR.

Cause:
Unknown,
Recommendation:
The District’s internal records be reviewed to ensure that all Capital Qutlay expenditures be properly classified

and included in the District’s capital asset report.

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated it will review and revise its procedures to ensure
corrective action is taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
CRESSKILL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

CURRENT YEAR FEDERAL AWARDS

Not Applicable

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

There are none.
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EXHIBIT K-7
CRESSKILL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state

awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S. OMB
Circular A-133 (Section .3 15(a)(b)) and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04,

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Finding 2010-1:

Our audit of budget account charges in the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Community Step to
Independence (“CST”) Fund revealed numerous expenditures were not charged to the proper budget line
accounts. We noted budget account charges for supplies and equipment were not classified and charged to the
proper budget line accounts. The financial statements and budget accounts were adjusted to reclassify these
expenditures to the proper budget line item accounts.

Current Status
Corrective action has been taken.

Finding 2010-2:
Our audit of budget account charges in the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Community Step to
Independence (“CSI”) Fund revealed numerous expenditures were not charged to the proper budget line
accounts. We noted budget account charges for supplies and equipment were not classified and charged to the
proper budget line accounts. The financial statements and budget accounts were adjusted to reclassify these
expenditures to the proper budget line item accounts.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.

Finding 2010-3:

Quotes were not obtained for certain building renovations, the auditorium/stage repairs, installation of fencing
around the High School track and football field and for the fire alarm upgrades to the Tallman House all of which
exceeded 15% of the current school year bid threshold.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken,
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